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Submission Statement

Hon. Ljiljanna Ravlich
Minister for Education and Training
12th Floor, Dumas House
2 Havelock Street
WEST PERTH   WA   6005

Dear Minister

In accordance with Section 54 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 and
Section 66 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, we have pleasure in submitting
for your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE for the year ending 31 December 2005.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985 and the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996.

Alison Woodman Peter Mahler
Chair, Governing Council Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
14 February 2006 14 February 2006
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Statement from the Chair of
the Governing Council

This year marks my final year as Chair of the
Governing Council, a role I have held since the
Council’s inception. I have thoroughly enjoyed this
role, watching the College mature as an organisation
and gain autonomy, and it is with some reluctance
that I leave the Wheatbelt region and the TAFEWA
College that services it.

The year has seen some new faces on the
Governing Council, bringing with them a range of
ideas, knowledge and expertise that can only serve
to strengthen the Council. This injection of new skills
and experience is essential to the College as it
embraces a new vision in addressing the ever-
evolving challenges this diverse region provides.

The year has been a transitional one, as the College
has effectively embraced its vision to be the regional
provider of choice for education, training and lifelong
learning in the Wheatbelt. To achieve this the College
has committed to developing its staff to increase
their knowledge and skills, enabling all College staff
to provide the best and most relevant training
services.

In 2005 the College has provided training services
to over three thousand students. These students
are spread over the whole of the Wheatbelt and
include rural and remote students across the whole
state of Western Australia.

Through continued collaboration with secondary
schools in the region the College has been able to
focus on implementing seamless, multiple learning
pathways to enable secondary students to articulate
into a range of C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
courses.

The College has also been impressive in the links
forged with the local community at all levels. Through
a number of industry partnerships, community
projects and youth programs the College has
continued to establish itself as a valued and
essential contributor to the communities it services
throughout the region.

The College has continued to support the pursuit of
sustainability in the Wheatbelt and embraces
sustainable practices in its day to day operations,
planning activities and in the delivery of Vocational
Education and Training services. All employees are
encouraged to and empowered to support
sustainability.

I would like to wish the College well for the future. I
feel I am handing over the reins with the College in
a solid position to embrace the future and its new
directions and I wish my successor the very best.
The College has a great asset in its committed and
dedicated staff and it is these people who will ensure
the College’s ongoing success.

Alison Woodman
Chair
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Membership of the
Governing Council

Alison Woodman
is Chair of the
Governing Council
and Principal of
Merredin Senior
High School.

Peter Stubbs was
formerly the Chief
Executive Officer of
the Shire of Moora.

Heidi Astbury is a
staff representative and
Principal Lecturer at C.Y.
O’Connor College of
TAFE in Narrogin.

Steven Pollard is Deputy
Chair of the Governing
Council and Proprietor of
SB Pollard Accountants in
Northam. He is also
involved in several
community organisations as
a volunteer.

Peter Mahler is
Managing Director of
C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE and Deputy
Chair of the Australian
Grains Institute.

Damien Martin is
a local business
proprietor.

Peter Trefort is the
Managing Director of
Hillside Meats in
Narrogin.

Suzanne Waters is an
Advanced Skills Lecturer in
Children’s Services at C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE.
She is also a State School
Teachers Union W.A.
Representative.

Olive Bennell is an
Aboriginal and Islander
Education Officer in
Brookton

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is a Statutory Authority with a Governing Council responsible
to the Minister for Education and Training.

The Governing Council has the authority, conferred by the Vocational Education and Training
Act 1996, to perform the following functions:

• Prepare a College Training Profile for the approval of the Minister and when required by the
Minister.

• Develop and implement strategic and management plans for the College.
• To monitor the college’s performance and intitiate improvements where necessary.
• Ensure that College courses, programs and services are responsive to, and meet the

needs of students, industry and the community.
• Ensure that the College’s commitments under its Resource Agreement and any other

contractual arrangements are met.

The Governing Council, under the act, delegates the strategic operation and management of
the College to the Managing Director.

Grant Arthur is the
Assistant Director of the
Wheatbelt Development
Commission in Northam.

Andrew Drummond
is the student
representative

Sally Higgins is the
Mayor of the Town of
Narrogin.

Celia Martin is a
representative from
the Wheatbelt
Aboriginal Corporation.

(No photograph
available)
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Managing Director’s

This year saw considerable recognition for C.Y.
O’Connor College staff and students. At the Training
Excellence Awards, lecturer Helen Hayward, was a
finalist for Trainer of the Year and Business Trainee,
Jean Monds, was a semi-finalist for Trainee of the
Year. A group of Aboriginal School-Based Trainees
were recognised for their work, winning the Southern
Region Secondary Group in the PALS (Partnership,
Acceptance, Learning and Sharing) awards. The
Semi-Intensive Floating Tank System at the Inland
Saline Aquaculture facility was both a Finalist in the
Environment Category at the Premier’s Awards and
a Grand Finalist in ABC’s The New Inventors. Youth
Work Lecturer, James Paxman, won two awards:
the Leadership category in the WA Youth Awards
and the Career Achievement in the WA Young
Achievers Awards. These nominations have
highlighted our commitment to meeting the individual
needs of the diverse community comprising the
Wheatbelt Region and the quality of staff employed
by the College.

This year is Alison Woodman’s last as Chair of C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE’s Governing Council, a
body she has presided over since its inception in
2001. The Council, and the College as a whole, have
benefitted greatly from her experience, knowledge
and wisdom, and we wish her the best in her new
appointment to a position in Perth. On behalf of the
College I would like to thank Alison Woodman for
her invaluable contribution and guidance as Chair
of the Governing Council.

The other sad note for the year was the passing of
long-serving Access and Equity Officer, James
Dawson, who succumbed in November following a
short illness. In his five and a half years at the College
James worked tirelessly to support our students with
special needs.

The Business Plan implemented in 2004 and aimed
at ensuring the long-term sustainability and growth
of the College has remained on track throughout the
year. This year has also seen considerable work in
the development of a new Strategic Plan which
outlines specifically the priorities for the College
which also align with State and Federal training
policies.

Other areas the
College have
d e v e l o p e d
includes creating
a d d i t i o n a l
opportunities for people with disabilities and the
indigenous population in the region. In 2005 the
College made a firm commitment to increase the
levels of Indigenous students enrolling and
completing AQF level 3 qualifications and above.

The College has also been proactive in addressing
the State’s skills shortages, especially in traditional
trades and agricultural professions. We have seen
a significant increase in the number of apprentices
and trainees undertaking training through the
College, and have more than met our targets. In
conjunction with Rural Skills Australia and the WA
Primary Industries Training Council the College has
delivered agricultural pre-employment training
courses at the Cunderdin Agricultural College and
Muresk Institute of Agriculture.

Continued efforts to nurture existing and new
alliances with industry, business and community
groups have strengthened the College’s links with
the region. The College secured a commitment from
the Department of Agriculture to deliver training to
trainees at the Department’s Research Stations
across Western Australia, as well as specialised
machinery operations training. Alliances have further
strengthened between CYOC and Primary
Industries such as pig production, grains,
aquaculture and machinery operations, with local
industry and collaboration with CBH, Wesfarmers
and Springfield Waters Aquaculture continues.
Furthermore, the College has established  a
partnership with Boekeman Machinery to set up an
agricultural machinery and plant mechanic training
academy in 2006.

In order to address the issue of an ageing population
throughout the Wheatbelt the College worked
collaboratively with Country Heath Services which
led to the enrolment of over 100 Aged Care trainees.

Summary 2005
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Through projects such as the Inland Saline
Aquaculture Demonstration Farm at Northam and
the Salmon Gum Conservation Nursery at Moora,
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is continuing to
demonstrate a commitment to innovation and to the
sustainability of the Wheatbelt region. In addition to
the abovementioned award nominations, this year
saw the implementation of a new phase of the Semi-
Intensive Floating Tank System at the ISA facility and
the securing of State and Federal funding to further
the research project. The Salmon Gums Nursery
was awarded a tender with the Moore Catchment
Council to supply 100,000 seedlings for their Brush
Wood project.

The focus on technological improvement has
continued in 2005. This year a large number of staff
have undergone training in online conferencing and
training delivery, with the expectation that this will
provide practical benefit to the College in 2006. The
College has also had a pivotal role in the
establishment of an online conferencing steering

group across the TAFEWA sector.

Our students remain the lifeblood of
the College and continue to strive for
excellence in their studies. This year’s
survey of Student Satisfaction by
Colmar Brunton Intelligence found
41% of our students to be very
satisfied with their training, 5% greater
than the state average. The survey
also found only 6% of our students to
be dissatisfied with their training, a
figure comparable to the State
average.

The Wheatbelt is an area over twice
the size of Tasmania, sparsely
populated and presenting a unique
challenge in its diversity. Servicing this
area requires flexibility, innovation and
dedication across the College and I
thank all staff for their contributions.
The ongoing success of the college is
a direct reflection of their efforts and I
commend them. I also acknowledge
the tireless effort and guidance of the
Governing Council.

Peter Mahler
Managing Director

The College has continued to place importance on
addressing the State’s “Creating the Future”
priorities in retention and training of the 15–19 year-
old cohort. Programs involving Aboriginal School-
Based Trainees in previous years were expanded
in 2005 to include involvement in the Department of
Indigenous Affairs PALS program. The year also saw
the implementation of District Education and Training
Plans which provided a focus on improving and
consolidating partnerships with secondary schools
in the region to increase vocational study options
for school-aged students. The Careers on Track
Resource centre, a joint project with the Department
of Education and Training and Narrogin Senior High
School, was launched in Narrogin. Work has been
progressing on implementing seamless, multiple
learning pathways, offering improved training
outcomes and choices for youth in the region.
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Strategic Directions

The Leading Regional Provider of
Vocational Education and Training
in Western Australia.

Leading the Wheatbelt Region
into a sustainable future by:

• Providing excellence in
Vocational Education and
Training through planned
delivery options and
partnerships.

• Providing life long and life wide
learning opportunities to
improve the quality of life for
the people of the region.

• Expanding the region’s skills
base and employment
opportunities.

• Promoting an integration of
environmental protection,
social advancement and
economic prosperity.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
is committed to providing:

Customer Service
Providing customers with a
quality service which they value
and is responsive to their needs
and expectations.
Learning and Development
Providing a learning and working
environment that is open, friendly,
conducive to teamwork and
personal and professional
development
Continuous Improvement and
Innovation
Encouraging initiative, innovation
and active participation in the
development and implementation
of new processes and training
services.
Access and Equity
Endeavouring at all times to
ensure equitable access to
services and facilities regardless
of age, gender, ethnicity, disability
or distance from learning centre.
Organisational and Personal
Integrity
Decisions and behaviour are
guided by the principles of
openness, honesty, fairness and
respect.

Vision

Mission

Values
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Key Result Areas 2005

1. Economic Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training to support the growth

of a diversified regional economy.

2. Social Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training to ensure an educated, healthy,

safe and supportive regional community.

KRA SOC-01
Community Relations

Strategic Objective
To proactively develop new

and enhance existing College
relationships with Industry

and the Community.

KRA SOC-02
Valuing People

Strategic Objective
To empower, encourage and
support College students and
staff to reach their potential.

3. Environmental Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training which promotes valuing and

protecting the environment.

KRA ENV-01
Teaching and Learning

Programs
Strategic Objective

To develop and implement
training programs and

courses which promote
environmental sustainability.

KRA ENV-02
College Operations
Strategic Objective

To foster environmentally
appropriate management of

College operations.

KRA ENV-03
Community Leadership

Strategic Objective
To provide leadership for the

Wheatbelt Community by
demonstrating

environmentally sustainable
good practice.

KRA ECO-01
Training Delivery

Strategic Objective
To promote excellence in

training.

KRA ECO-02
Innovation, Quality and

Continuous Improvement
Strategic Objective

To continually improve the
College’s products and

services.

KRA ECO-03
Financial Sustainability

Strategic Objective
To strategically manage

College finances to ensure
responsive growth.
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Services and Facilities
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is committed to
providing a very high quality of training and
associated services for our students.
Services based at the Northam campus include:
• a Bookshop which carries a range of materials

and books relevant to TAFE training. Mail orders
are accepted to ensure all students have
access;

• a Canteen that provides refreshments and
nutritious food in an air-conditioned facility,
where students and staff are welcome to gather;

• a Library which provides a variety of materials
including books, pamphlets, video recordings,
audiocassettes, microfiche and journals. The
library provides CD-Roms and overnight loan.
Students are invited to borrow books by mail;

• an Equity Officer who provides assistance to
students who are experiencing barriers to
learning.

Each campus has computers available for student
use.

We provide Aboriginal Program Assistants and an
Aboriginal Development Officer to assist
community groups and individuals, encouraging
participation and completion of training by Indigenous
members of the community.

The CY Career Focus program provides
opportunity for employers to register their job
vacancies with the college. Suitable, job-ready
graduates and students who have registered with
the program can then be referred to these positions.
The College Grievance Officers are available to
students and staff throughout the college to address
any issues or concerns.

Library, Northam Campus

Skills Recognition is offered to those with
experience in the field of their chosen qualification.
This is the formal acknowledgement of skills,
knowledge and competencies that individuals have
gained through work, informal training and life
experience.

Canteen, Northam CampusComputer Lab
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College Environment
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is an autonomous
College and is part of the Australian Vocational
Education and Training System, operating under the
National Training Framework and Australian
Qualification Framework. Training is offered across
all levels from Certificates I, II, III and IV to Diplomas
and Advanced Diplomas.

The College is an innovative and progressive training
organisation, committed to meeting the education
and training needs of Western Australia’s Wheatbelt
region. In recognition of exemplary services, the
College won the prestigious Premier’s Award for
“Services to Rural and Remote Communities”.

Our vision reflects the desire to be the regional
provider of choice for education, training and lifelong
learning in the communities we service. We have
adopted a culture of continuous improvement which
enables the College to encourage organisational
growth and development to improve our ways of
working.

The College is committed to enhancing relationships
with communities, industry and individual
enterprises by being responsive to the skills and
knowledge requirements of public and private sector
organisations. C.Y. O’Connor is unique in the
flexibility and versatility of its offerings through a
variety of delivery options and partnerships which
meet industry training needs.

C.Y. O’Connor College has a strong customer focus
in delivery and assessment and is committed to
maximising student, customer and staff satisfaction
by actively monitoring, reviewing and continuously
improving and customising our products and
services. The International Standards Organisation
and Australian Quality Training Framework
Standards accreditation and auditing processes
ensure the College operates efficiently and
effectively. The increase in the student satisfaction
rate from 83% in 2004 to 85% in 2005 reflects this
focus.

C.Y. O’Connor College was established in 1995 and
is comprised of four regional campuses, located in,
Merredin, Moora, Narrogin and Northam. Additional
TAFE centres operate in Bindoon, Jurien Bay
Kellerberrin, Kondinin, Pingelly and Quairading. The
College also has partnerships with many of the 43

Telecentres throughout the region. With an area of
154,000 square kilometres encompassing 44
different shires, and a population of 72,000, the
Wheatbelt Region is one of Western Australia’s most
sparsely distributed regions.

The College supports the pursuit of sustainability in
the Wheatbelt and embraces sustainability principles
in its day to day operations, planning activities, and
in the delivery of Vocational Education and Training
services. All employees are encouraged and
empowered to support sustainability.

C.Y. O’ Connor College of TAFE provides a diverse
range of services including:

• Vocational education consultancy and
competency-based training according to the
Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF);

• Short course programs and just-in-time training;
• Corporate training;
• Industry consultancy;
• Delivery of VET for schools;
• Provision of curriculum and learning materials

(including electronic access);
• Auspicing services for work-based training;
• Research and Development consultancies;
• Career Counselling and job readiness skills;
• Work Based Delivery and Assessment/

Traineeship and Apprenticeships to New and
Existing Employers;

• Holistic Skills Recognition.
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Organisational Structure

Managing Director
Peter Mahler

Director Research
& Planning

Prue Jenkins

A/Director
Academic Services

Doug Monk

Director Corporate
Services

David Rampono

Regional Manager
Northern Region

Dean O’Callaghan

A/Portfolio Director
Primary Industries &
Learning Enterprises
Peter McGlew

Academic Policy &
Projects Manager

Kathy Pollard

Manager Finance
Brett Parker

A/Regional Manager
Eastern Region

Kerrie Goff

Regional Manager
Southern Region
Sandra English

A/Manager
Community Relations

Peter Byfield

Manager Quality
& Planning

Darryl Forward

Aboriginal
Development Officer-

Northern
Les Martin

Portfolio Director
Business & Social

Sciences
John Smoker

Data Administrator
Tiffany Maddox

Portfolio Director
Trades & Industry
Peter Harding

Principal Lecturer
Peter Forbes

Principal Lecturer
Heidi Astbury

Manager Human
Resources

Michael Bowman

Manager
Information Technology

Brenden O’Driscoll

A/Manager Learning
Resources

Charlene Plunkett

Aboriginal
Development Officer-

Southern
Raelene Kickett

Disability Services
Co-ordinator

James Dawson
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Desired Outcomes for
Public Training Providers

Provide Vocational Education and Training
consistent with a College Training Profile;

Provide to an employer, a group of employers
or any other persons or authorities such Fee-
for-Service training programs as are
authorised by the Minister for Training;

Undertake research and development related
to Vocational Education and Training which
has a direct practical application to industry,
commerce and the community;

Promote equality of opportunity in the
undertaking of Vocational Education and
Training;

Provide or arrange for the delivery of services
to students;

Participate in initiatives involving the whole
of the State training system and collaborate
with other Colleges and educational
institutions to ensure the greatest
effectiveness and economy in expenditure
and the most beneficial relationship with
other Colleges and educational institutions
throughout the State;

Contribute to the general development of the
community in the region of the College
through activities such as the provision of
adult and community education, as may be
authorised by the Minister;

Provide, on behalf of another education
authority, post-secondary education as is
approved by the Minister.

The College performs functions as conferred on it by the
Vocational Education and Training (VET) Act 1996

or by the Minister by order published in the
Government Gazette as detailed below:

Meeting in progress, Globalink
Conference Room
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• Western Australian Country Health Service
(WACH) traineeship program which is providing
training to one hundred and forty-five health
Service Workers across the Wheatbelt area;

• The Workplace English Language and Literacy
(WELL) at two local Shires;

• Successful delivery of the Gaining Access To
Employment and Training (GATE) which was
delivered in Narrogin, Northam, Pingelly, Brookton
and Beverley. The GATE program is being
extended in 2006 and is now incorporated in the
district education plan, a total of 50 students
benefitted from this exciting program.

As in previous years the unit has delivered the
Aboriginal School-Based Traineeships across the
region. This year the Northam students won a BHP
Billiton state award for their program which
incorporated a reconciliation sculpture located in
Bernard Park in Northam.

BSS Staff who received awards and recognition in
2005 include James Paxman, who won the WA
Young Achiever award for Career Achievement and
Delia Pascua-McGlew who was finalist in the
Premier’s Teacher of the Year awards.

Priorities for 2006
For 2006 BSS will add registration and delivery of
the Enrolled Nursing course for Narrogin with plans
for similar project in Northam in 2007.

The unit will also commence delivery of the
Indigenous Local Governance course in Northam
and Moora campuses in line with National and State
priorities.

2005 proved to be a challenging year in regards to
meeting profile targets, however through the efforts
made by all members of the Business and Social
Science team, we have been able to provide quality
training and learning experiences for our students.

This was verified in our 2005 student satisfaction
survey which showed an increase in the overall
satisfaction rate for our students from 83% to 85%
which is slightly above the state average.

Congratulations to the lecturing and support staff
for a fine effort!

Report on Operations
Business and Social Sciences
Courses which come under this portfolio include:
Business Management, Financial Services,
Community Services, Certificate IV in Training and
Assessment, Information Technology, and
Multimedia.

BSS delivers approx 35% of the College’s total
training hours across the whole region. Modes of
delivery include traineeships, face to face classes,
short courses and external self paced learning.

Achievements
In 2005 this portfolio has added several new
courses and training packages to scope, including
the new Certificate IV in Training and Assessment.
Addition to scope required many hours of
preparation of delivery plans and assessment tools.
Congratulations to the lecturers responsible for this,
the College received registration for the course from
Training Accreditation Council on our first
submission of the scope documentation.

The unit also underwent the audit for our VET in
Schools program; the auditors identified several
examples of best practice and congratulated us for
the quality of our VET in Schools program and the
excellent co-ordination and delivery model utilised.

The unit was invited to showcase the Aged Care
traineeship program at the Central TAFE Best
Practice Forum and have since received positive
feedback and requests for details on this excellent
resource. Several College lecturers from other
program areas have adapted this interactive CD
approach to delivery for their students with excellent
results.

Although the unit did not achieve delivery of all
allocated student contact hours it came in well
under budget. There was also increased commercial
services activities, these included:

Business Student,
Narrogin Campus
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Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises

Report on Operations

In 2005, Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises
provided a diverse range of training to our clients in
the areas of Agriculture, Rural Operations, Rural
Business Management, Grain Handling, Wool
Classing, Horticulture, Conservation and Land
Management, Aquaculture, Teacher Assistant and
Children Services.

Achievements
Commercial delivery for the Department of
Agriculture expanded to include tractor operations,
header operations and stock handling in locations
such as Kununurra, Wongan Hills, Merredin,
Katanning, Mount Barker and Manjimup. Delivery of
Rural Operations traineeships for the Department
of Agriculture commenced to address the needs of
skills shortages in technical assistants at the
Department’s research stations.

Two Agricultural pre-employment
courses (Header Operations and
Rural Operations) were delivered in
partnership with Rural Skills Australia
and were strongly supported by the
Department of Education and
Training, assisting with funding of
students’ course fees.

A second round of 2004’s very
successful BYO program (Bring your
own culture, skills, talents and
experience) funded under Australians
Working Together saw the completion
of another very successful program
with the previous year’s participants
fulfilling the role of mentors to the 2005
newcomers.

Australians Working Together also funded Literacy
for Mum & Bub, a program targeting young mothers
with limited literacy and numeracy skills. The
program involved improving these skills in activities
involving both the mothers and their children.

“Actions Speak Louder Than Words,” (Skills
Recognition for Migrants) was a project funded by
the Department of Education and Training to produce
a skills recognition booklet designed to enable

migrants from a Non-English Speaking Background
to access RPL information and processes in a non-
threatening and supportive environment.

The partnership with Challenger for Aquaculture
research continued, with funding secured for a
further three years from Fisheries Research and
Development Corporation, Wheatbelt Development
Commission and Springfield Waters. The Semi-
Intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS) has moved
to a pilot commercialisation stage, aimed at
developing a viable marine finfish industry in suitable
locations, including the Wheatbelt. This technology
featured on the ABC’s New Inventors program,
winning its round and going on to be selected in the
top five inventions for 2005. Worldwide interest has
been generated in this project.

SIFTS (Semi-Intensive Floating Tank System)

Wool handling delivery has increased significantly,
with a positive response in the Moora region to the
College offering a proportion of these qualifications
as training in the workplace. Shearing and shedhand
training was successfully implemented across the
region with the College’s component of the Regional
Training Alliance funded by Australian Wool
Innovations.
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A memorandum of understanding between the
College and Chemcert WA now allows students
completing Certificate III level units of competence
in chemical handling to also be issued with a
Chemcert certificate.

The 2005 Australian Grains Institute Scholarships
were contested strongly. This year two applicants
were jointly awarded, sharing the $6,000
scholarship, which will assist with their studies at
Muresk Institute of Agriculture. The College
coordinates this scholarship on behalf of Inghams,
Grain Pool, CBH, Rabobank, Western railroads and
AWB.

The Salmon Gum Community Conservation
Nursery located at Moora campus has
propagated a variety of species on contract
for various clients including Casuarina
cunninghamiana for windbreaks at the
Agrifresh citrus project and a contract with
Moore Catchment Council supplying 100,000
Melaleuca uncinata (Broombush) seedlings
for projects in that region.

Agrifresh, a large company currently
establishing a large citrus orchard in the
Moora region, have been employing Moora
campus horticulture students and are keen
to continue this relationship, as well as take
on trainees as the project develops.

Teacher Assistant and Children’s Services
performed strongly during 2005 with increasing
demand, characterised by outstanding teamwork
and customer service.

Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises

Report on Operations

Students learning tractor driving with
C.Y. O’Connor College’s new tractor.
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Trades and Industry

The Trades Portfolio Area provides training to
students, apprentices and trainees in the areas
of Automotive Mechanics, Heavy Duty Diesel
Mechanics, Metal Fabrication, Local Government,
Building Construction, Hospitality, Sport and
Recreation, Retail and Tourism.

In 2005 the College established the Boekeman
Academy, a joint venture delivering pre-apprentice
courses in an industry setting which gives
students access to situations, skills and equipment
unavailable within the College environment.

The College continued to provide an invaluable
service to industry partners by conducting interviews
for potential apprentices in a variety of relevant
industries.

C.Y. O’Connor College continued to deliver the full
range of Local Government courses statewide this
year, mainly on a commercial (fee-for service) basis.

The College has continued its collaboration with the
Town of Northam to refurbish an eco-friendly house,
providing valuable experience for VET in School
students.

A six-bay car shed was completed mid year, built
with the assistance of students. The car shed
provides secure parking for the College vehicle fleet.

The Trades area continued to provide more
resources for students, taking delivery of a
Dynamometer, a high tech machine that performs
engine diagnostics and measures horsepower
output, adding to the hands-on training available.

The College’s continuing partnership with Marley’s
Transport saw approximately thirty Certificate III in
Transport and Distribution (Road Transport)
traineeships commence in 2005.

The College continued to deliver metals, furniture,
retail and first aid training in five West Australian
prisons with excellent results for all concerned.

The College has experienced a marked increase in
apprentices and trainees with metals apprentices
and trainees doubled to 99 and plant mechanic
apprentices doubled to 30.

The College has also secured a grant for $140,000
for the purchase of Metal Fabrication equipment,
from the Department of Education and Training.

Three very successful art exhibitions were held
during the year, two of which were “Nuts and Bolts”
during September at Avon Valley Arts Society in
Northam, and  Narrogin’s “2005 Impressions”.

At the third exhibition TAFE students exhibited at a
commercial gallery, raising their own funds towards
their “The Exhibitionist” exhibition at the Monet Gallery
in Guildford, which demonstrated the variety of work
produced by students of the College.

Narrogin Campus had three arts graduates accepted
into places at Curtin University to continue in a Fine
Arts Degree and during the year Narrogin students
won prizes at prestigious art events including the
Katanning Art Prize, the KEELA Dreaming Festival,
Wagin Woolorama, and the Narrogin Art Prize.

Report on Operations

Block release apprentices, Northam Campus
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The Southern Region delivers to areas from Brookton, east to Kondinin
and south to Dumbleyung, with its administrative centre in the town
of Narrogin. Agricultural training forms a large part of its delivery.

Southern Region

Report on Operations

The Southern Region encompasses the Shires of
Beverley, Brookton, Cuballing, Dumbleyung/Kukerin,
Kondinin, Kulin, Lake Grace, Narrogin, Pingelly,
Wagin, Wandering, West Arthur and Williams. The
College campus is located in the town of Narrogn.
Two centres are located in Pingelly and Kondinin.

In 2005 the Southern Region had record enrolments
in woolclassing. The partnership with C.Y. O’Connor
College and Challenger TAFE in Wool Technology
has been offering courses in the region for 11 years
and has seen this program being extended to include
the WA College of Agriculture–Cunderdin and to the
Northern Region.

VET in Schools delivery increased in 2005 in
business, woolclassing and automotive with
successful outcomes. Delivery with the Narrogin
Senior High School students increased with a large
class of automotive students enjoying their
experience at TAFE, passing all competencies. A
successful clothing and production student won the
design award at the NSHS and went on to the State
finals. She was runner-up overall but took top award
for technical design, a great achievement for the
student and her lecturer.
Two very successful art exhibitions were held in

Narrogin and Kondinin. The Managing Director
opened the Narrogin exhibition and was impressed
with the high standard of work by the art and clothing
production students. Kondinin art students
participated in the WA Arts Council travelling Art
Show.

The Aboriginal School-Based Traineeship program
was well supported with 8 students completing the
course. Students travelled from Brookton, Pingelly
and Wagin to participate while completing their
school studies. This course will continue in 2006.

A highly successful existing workers program in Aged
Care was conducted in Narrogin. A record number
of trainees and students participated and intend to
enrol in higher level studies in 2006. The lecturers
are held in high esteem throughout the region for
their dedication to the students and employers.

The College has been conducting tractor operations
courses throughout the State including the Kimberley
region. These courses have had Departmental
support and the level of expertise the students gain
enables them to seek employment in the agriculture
sector. Extensive training with the Department of
Agriculture was conducted in 2005 and will continue
in 2006.

An Aboriginal Development Officer has been liaising
with KEEDAC groups within the region to ascertain
training needs and to set goals for delivery of new
courses. This will see an increase in Indigenous
student participation in 2006 with a focus on
sustainable enterprise development.

A close working partnership with the co-ordinator of
“Careers on Track” saw the commencement of two
“Work Readiness” programs for 15–19 year olds in
Narrogin and another in Brookton.

Shearing Course, Narrogin
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Northern Region

The Northern Region is centred around the town of Moora and covers
an area west to the coast at Jurien and east to Dalwallinu.

In the past two years the Horticulture course
operating out of the Salmon Gum Community
Conservation Nursery at the Moora campus has
gone from strength to strength demonstrated in the
strong enrolments received over this period.

The following key points were addressed in 2005.
• Partnerships
• Training Centres
• Innovation

Two significant Citrus Orchards are currently being
developed in the Moora region and meetings were
held with both companies. The AgriFresh group and
the College have formed an understanding, with the
company agreeing to employ a number of students
and provide hands-on experience to our students.

Representatives from the Australian Plant Factory
and C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE met at the Moora
Campus and formed an agreement to research the
viability of leasing part of the large workshop
complex on campus.  The business would primarily
be involved in plant tissue culture and with its
proximity to the Moora Campus Salmon Gum
Community Conservation Nursery, provide a
tremendous opportunity for students to gain access
to an industry not found outside of the Metropolitan
region.

The College also commenced talks with Stanwell
Corporation Limited. Negotiation began in 2005 with
the view to deliver a training course to specifically
meet the needs of Stanwell and the local indigenous
community. The course based on the Certificate II
in Rural Operations will incorporate many units that
will lead to improved employment opportunities in a
variety of fields such as Horticulture, Tourism and
Landcare.

The Moora campus developed a close working
ssociation with the Gingin Telecentre resulting in the
delivery of day and evening classes in the Guilderton
and Woodridge communities.  A total of 30 students
were enrolled in computing.

VET for Schools

Strong links have been formed with the Central
Midlands Senior High School. Secondary students
from the  school enrolled in the Certificate II of
Information Technology. The success of this program
is evident in the support through a potential VET
student enrolment of 22 secondary students for the
2006 period.

Jurien Bay
At Jurien Bay the College has maintained its strong
enrolments in Business and IT studies. The Jurien
Bay Centre currently runs full time studies in
Certificate II in Business, Certificate III in Business
Administration, Financial Services and Certificate II
in Information Technology.  Discussions have been
held with local fishing and Charter boat
representatives.  Currently the College is developing
a training program that will meet the specific needs
of the community in the fishing and tourism industries
with the view to delivering courses in 2006.

Chittering Region
Along with Jurien Bay, the Chittering region is
witnessing tremendous growth, particularly in the
lower Chittering region.

In 2005 the College has extended the program at
Bindoon by offering full-time and part-time studies
in Accounting and other Business Studies and Office
and Clerical work through a flexible learning
program. Nine students have enrolled and regular
workshops are held at the Chittering Shire
Chambers.

An introductory
computing course
was also held at the
Muchea Hall with very
positive results.

Moora Irrigation Workshop
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The Eastern Region encompasses thirteen local government areas
centred around the major regional centre of Merredin. Courses are
delivered through established centres at Merredin, Kellerberrin and
Quairading and via an extensive Telecentre network. Flexible delivery
strategies include work based training and assessment,
videoconferencing and the use of computer based online technology.

Achievements
A continued partnership with Merredin Senior High
School has produced a significant increase in
School-based trainees whilst Kellerberrin District
High School produced some exceptional Aboriginal
School-Based Trainees. A trial Gaining Access to
Employment (GATE) activity has been introduced
to various clients at Kellerberrin involving youth at
risk, primarily to encourage them to participate and
submit suggestions for a comprehensive program
for 2006, it is anticipated this course will offer
increased flexibility to this student group.

The Quairading Art course continued with strong
enrolments. Fourteen full-time students enrolled and
three part-timers completed their certificate,
acquiring their qualifications at certificate III level. The
Art course culminated in a local exhibition of student
artwork at the TAFE campus.

A partnership arrangement was entered into with
Quairading Telecentre with two Northam based staff
members relocating to Quairading two days a week.
This provided CYOC with a presence and public

relations exercises will be conducted to engender
additional education and training at that centre.
Meetings have been held with the President of the
Quairading Chamber of Commerce, with the view
to introducing to the members an ethos of employing
local school leavers in traineeships and
apprenticeships.

A training needs analysis was conducted with
government organisations to investigate their training
requirements, as a consequence, a cross-agency
group forklift operations course has been conducted
with the possibility of a variety of many more, such
as Chemcert, Occupational Health & Safety,
Frontline Management, Communication,
Assertiveness, Time Management, Presentation
skills (Powerpoint & Verbal) Networking skills.
Individual consultation has also evolved from this
study request in possible workshops on health
financing, mental health, children health advocacy.

There has been a considerable growth enquiry in
the delivery of short courses involving partnerships

between prisons, local government,
private enterprise and state government
organisations, which include chainsaw
and first aid.  A Local Government forum
was held with the NEWROC group,
negotiations are continuing for combined
groups training in chainsaw operations,
tree pruning, chemical handling and basic
computer.

A relationship has been developed with
the Merredin Shire Council for ongoing
individual and group training.

Eastern Region

Report on Operations

Students working at the Parish Centre, Kellerberrin
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The College was involved in an Agricultural display
at the Dryandra Research Station’s Annual Field
Day, managed by the Department of Agriculture in
Merredin; and a Parenting Information Expo held in
Merredin.

Aged Care & Disability Services were additional
courses run on campus together with a private
group from one of the largest employers in Merredin,
Hutton and Northey.  Partnerships with local industry
have seen an increase in both government and
private enterprises utilising the conference facilities
on a regular basis at Merredin Campus.

Extensive consultation has been undertaken with
members of the Merredin Aboriginal Community
together with the Merredin Council, Police
Department and major employers in Merredin and
Perth. A community meeting was held to discuss

Report on Operations

the formation of a Rural Partnership with the
Aboriginal community members, which will involve
long term training prospects for Aboriginal People in
such things as Personal Empowerment, leadership
capacity, commitment, conflict and anger
management, Nyoongar language, first aid, nutrition,
personal hygiene, literacy & numeracy, basic budget
management. It is anticipated the commencement
of training will occur in April 2006 and continue for a
number of years.

The College has a continued representation on
various community committees including the
Merredin Interagency Committee, Quairading
Community Action group, Merredin Reconciliation
Group and Merredin Forum.

Dowerin Field Days Display 2005
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Indigenous Services Unit

Report on Operations

The Indigenous Services Unit consults with
indigenous communities, organisations and
individuals to identify education and training needs
and to develop appropriate strategies to address
these needs.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has two active
Aboriginal Education Employment & Training
Committees (AEETC) operating within its Region.
The membership of these committees includes
TAFE staff, members of indigenous organisations
and representatives from the community. The
committee discusses Indigenous education and
training issues and advises the College on
appropriate courses for Indigenous communities and
organisations and addresses any impediments to
participation.

Achievements
The College is currently developing a partnership
with the Department of Indigenous Affairs to deliver
Certificate IV in Business (Governance) to
Community Action Groups and Indigenous
organisations in the Wheatbelt.

The College has again conducted a Year 10
Aboriginal School Based Traineeship (ASBT)
reconciliation project this year. 2005 saw the ASBT’s
engage in a project to construct a sculpture. The
theme of the project was reconciliation and, with the
assistance of PALS funding (Partnerships,
Acceptance, Learning and Sharing) and additional
funding from Wheatbelt Aboriginal Corporation, the
project was a huge success with the sculpture
destined to be mounted in Bernard Park in Northam.
The project won an award under the PALS
Secondary Schools Reconciliation Program.

The College is currently negotiating a Partnership
with Stanwell Corporation Ltd to train Indigenous
people in the Moora area on Stanwell’s wind-farm
project.

Ongoing consulting of Indigenous communities and
organisations to increase Indigenous participation
with a focus on Certificate III level courses.

Regular Indigenous staff meetings were held during
2005. These meetings are for Indigenous staff to
discuss issues or concerns they may have
regarding students and course availability in their
community/region.The meetings also discuss
current policies on Indigenous education and
training, at both Federal and State Government level.
The meetings serve to provide professional
development and investigation of career pathways.
2005 saw the launch of the new Cross Cultural
Framework for delivery of cross cultural awareness
training.

Horticulture student, Moora Campus
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The Northam based Aboriginal Development Officer
attended the NCVER Indigenous Research Forum
in Adelaide. This national forum focussed on
Vocational Education and Training and looked at the
Strategies identified in the Marking It Happen (2001–
2005) initiative and also served to launch “The Way
Forward” for 2006. The focus of this is to create
more pathways for indigenous students through to
employment, improve funding frameworks and
design and develop more culturally appropriate
products and services and in broader terms build
the capacity of the VET sector. TAFE Directors
Australia worked to develop an Indigenous Charter
which will be launched in 2006.

The Indigenous Services Section held an information
day for Centrelink to inform Indigenous students of
Centrelink services and debt avoidance.

The Aboriginal Development Officer attends
Aboriginal Education Advisory Council (AEAC)
meetings, four per year, The AEAC is made up of
members from the Indigenous communities of
Northam, Moora, Merredin, York, Beverley
Goomalling. The committee also includes the
Director General of Education, the Manager of
Aboriginal Education, Principals and a TAFE
representative. The council discusses Indigenous
education in schools, allocates Supplementary
Recurrent Assistance funding, Indigenous education
and training policies and advises the Director and
Manager of issues and concerns within the
Indigenous communities regarding Indigenous
education and training.

Aboriginal School Based Trainees, Lorna, Congetta, Jessica and Danielle at the 2005
PALS awards, receiving an award for the secondary schools section.

Report on Operations
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Quality, Policy and Planning
Services
The Quality and Planning section is responsible for
coordinating Quality Management in the College
through the implementation and maintenance of the
Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF) and
ISO 9001:2000. The Section is responsible for
encouraging and supporting continuous
improvement activities throughout the College and
assisting the Director Research and Planning in
College planning and research processes.The
Section also coordinates the implementation and
management of the Records Management function
in the College.

During 2005 the College determined to not continue
with certification to the Investor in People Standard
(IiP) for the College. This decision has been taken
following an assessment of the need for ongoing IiP
recognition. The College intends to focus on
certification to the Australian Quality Training
Framework (AQTF) and ISO 9001:2000 Standards.

AQTF
An Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF)
Follow-up Audit of the College’s delivery activities
was undertaken in  August 2005. The auditors noted
the advances that the College has shown in its
maturing approach to the AQTF since the 2003 audit.

The auditors reported Good Practice in areas
including Lecturer Induction, Internal Audit
processes, Complaints Handling and training
delivery in the Agriculture, Community Services and
Trades areas. A non compliance relating to Version
Control of training delivery resources remains an
issue for the College, with strategies being
implemented in 2006 to address this issue.

BVQI Surveillance Audits were conducted in the
College over the 27th and 28th of April and October
24th and 25th and included review of College business
activities and quality system against the
requirements of the ISO 9001:2000 Standard. These
visits involved an audit of the Eastern Region and
Southern Region including the administration and
lecturing activities at these campuses. The Northam
Campus audits included a review of Training Delivery
in the Trades and Business and Social Sciences
Portfolio Areas. College Planning activities,
Performance Reporting and Quality System
Management were also reviewed. No non
compliances were identified during these audits with
the auditors noting that the Quality System is mature
and working well and all of the staff interviewed
showed good customer focus.

Internal Audits
The 2005 internal audit schedule was completed in
November with all training delivery portfolio areas
included in the audit sampling process. All
administration areas were reviewed at the Northam
Campus and also at each of the Regions. Most
issues identified through this process have been
addressed with outstanding issues being monitored
for completion.

Library display, Northam Campus

ISO
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The Education and Training Sector agencies have
adopted a common Record Keeping Plan (RKP).
This Plan sets out strategies for compliance with
the 6 RKP Principles including measuring the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Record Keeping
system, implementation and review of training
programs and induction processes.

During 2005, the Records Information Management
Group (RIMG), comprising representatives from
across the Education and Training sectors,
developed a number of documents to support the
the RKP. This commenced in early 2005 with the
final documents endorsed by the relevant School
and TAFE committees in November 2005. These
documents have been forwarded to the State
Records Office for review and approval.

The RIMG has finalised the preparation of an Online
Induction and Training Package which has content
relating to Records Management responsibilities at
employee and manager levels. The content of the
package applies to all the Education and Training
Sector agencies with the implementation to be
progressed in 2006. This induction program was
trailed by the College in 2005. At present staff are
trained on a local basis on Records Management
processes by the Records Officer.

Throughout 2005 the RIMG has also been
progressing an Education and Training Sector
Thesaurus which is to follow the Keyword AAA
methodology by making Keywords and Descriptors
mandatory. As part of the TAFE sector approach
Challenger TAFE has been responsible for updating
and maintaining the TAFE Thesaurus,
implementation of which is expected in early 2006.

Report on Operations

The Department of Education and Training, Internal
Assurance Directorate, has agreed to conduct a
baseline audit of the RKP Principles across 50
sector sites in 2006, including all TAFE Colleges. A
draft audit document has been developed by the
RKP Team which is based on the State Records
Commission Principles and Standards. Initial
feedback from the Auditors was that they wanted to
see some sort of progression within each Principle.
It is intended that the audit questions will be specific
enough to quantify resources needed to progress
any further actions required. This audit review
process will commence in early 2006 and is due
for completion by June 2006.

An overarching Records Management Standard
Operating Procedures Manual has also been
developed and provided to the College for comment.
Once finalised it is intended that the document will
be tailored for local worksites.

Office at Kellerberrin

Record Keeping Plan 2005
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Section Two

Strategic Planning and
Reporting Framework

Social Outcomes—People and Communities
Economic Outcomes—The Economy
Environmental Outcomes—The Environment
Regional Outcomes—The Wheatbelt Region
Governance Outcomes—Good Governance
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities

This objective reflects the College community’s
need to recognize the varying contribution of the
Wheatbelt’s diverse population, and ensures it is able
to respond effectively to the needs of this diverse
population.

College-wide strategies include the College being
governed by a Council of local community and
business members, including members of the
Indigenous community, union members, with an
equitable gender distribution. The Governing Council
advocates throughout the region on behalf of the
College and provides a regular conduit of information
to inform the College’s strategic planning process.

In addition, community consultative forums and mail
surveys are conducted regularly throughout the
region and with particular target industry groups to
ensure that the College develops new and enhances
existing relationships with Industry and Community
groups.  The College has also implemented a regular
schedule of AEETC (Aboriginal Employment
Education and Training Committee) meetings to
discuss Indigenous education and training issues
and provide advice to the College of appropriate
courses for Indigenous communities and
organisations. These feedback mechanisms ensure
that the College remains responsive to local industry
and community training needs and contributes to
and support local employment growth. This process
also assists in identifying and addressing
contributing factors to social and economic
disadvantage in the community.

Indigenous students comprise 11% of the College’s
total student body and as such the College strives
to create an environment where Indigenous
Australians are empowered with greater economic
and social opportunities and the capacity to
determine their own life. Strategies are in place to
improve Indigenous participation and completion
rates in Wheatbelt schools and the College through
collaborative planning, with a particular focus on

“To enhance the quality of life and
well being of all people throughout

Western Australia.”

Certificate III and above. The objective is to provide
a seamless pathway from the secondary education
system into vocational programs at TAFE, to
increase the flow of students from school to TAFE.
The College conducted a very successful Aboriginal
School-Based Trainee program for fifty-one
students throughout the region.

The College works collaboratively with groups such
as: telecentres; Local Government agencies; the
Employment Directions network; Job Networks;
Youth Advisory Councils; Aboriginal Corporations; the
Department of Justice; Essential and Hotham
Personnel; Industry Training Councils and Advisory
Bodies and a growing range of industry entities.

C.Y. O’Connor College regularly collaborates with
other TAFEWA Colleges to strengthen the TAFEWA
network as per the Minister’s priorities and has
partnership arrangements in place to deliver primary
industries, trades and community services training.
Staff from across the College are members of the
various Curriculum Services Support Networks and
Curriculum Advisory Groups and this provides
opportunity for collaboration in delivery and resource
development and ensures currency and consistency
with industry training trends.

Jenny Miller-Nixon, nominated by her students
for the Premier’s Teacher of the Year Awards
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Isolation, limited employment opportunities and a
lack of transition pathway guidance for young people
is of concern to rural clientele living in the Wheatbelt
region of Western Australia. As a result of this,
Careers on Track was developed in Narrogin in 2005
to address the specific needs of 15–19 year olds.
This development has provided a focal point for
career development in the region and strategic
partnerships have been developed within the local
communities between the College, industry
employers (through BEC and Chamber of
Commerce), EDN, schools, universities, students,
parents and general community members.

Careers on track is proving to be the central liasing
point for all schools and staff within the district to
access a wide, comprehensive employer base. JIIG-
CAL has been made available to local schools who
come into the centre so all students can utilise this
computer based career program. Up-to-date career
education and counselling is undertaken by staff
operating from the Careers on Track as well as
developing a mobile service to outlying centres/
schools when required.

Careers-on-Track opening, April 2005

Social Outcomes

People and Communities

C.Y. O’Connor College has established partnerships
with five Senior and five District High Schools in the
Wheatbelt as well as Kelmscott Senior High School
and the WA Colleges of Agriculture. Similarly, the
College has worked closely with the University sector
to develop and support articulation pathways to
ensure Lifelong Learning opportunities are available
to all.

Additionally, the College worked collaboratively with
the Narrogin Education District office to establish
“Careers On Track” which provided a dedicated shop
front in the Narrogin town centre to support
disengaged youth and those considered to be “at
risk” by providing career advice and individual training
plans.

C.Y. O’Connor strives to empower, encourage and
support College students and staff to reach their
potential. The College has extended their offering of
career counseling and employment preparation
strategies. A Student Council, elected by their peers,
provides meaningful input into the College’s
governance, as well as opportunity for students to
extend their skills base. Staff benefit from a
strategically planned and focused Professional and
Career Development strategy which is designed to
build the professional capacity of the College and
also provide for more structured career
advancement and succession planning.

Youth Outcomes
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities
VET in schools
In 2005 C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE undertook
auspicing arrangements with five Senior and five
District High Schools together with two Agricultural
Colleges.

A total of 53,157 SCH was auspiced in 2005 as well
as 27,813 SCH being delivered through Profile.

The demand on Profile delivery has well exceeded
the allocated 26,914 SCH. The raising of the School
Leaving Age to 16 will exacerbate this demand for
profile.

During 2005 the College undertook a number of
internal audits in the schools we partner and found
them, in the whole, to be complying with the
requirements of AQTF with only minor non-
compliances being addressed. Further audits will
be undertaken in 2006 on the remaining schools.

An external audit conducted by the Training
Accreditation Council found the College to be
compliant on all standards of the AQTF.

Northam and Cunderdin Senior High School VET students
working on the James Street house project.

The Glide program targeted at risk, disengaged 15–
19 year olds. Glide was reflective of the College’s
commitment to the Youth Advantage Strategy and
involved collaboration with Avon Youth Services.
AYS provided an off-campus home as a training
venue. Glide encouraged a focused re-engagement
to learning through Certificate I in Business.

The program aimed at benefitting the community
by:

   1. Retaining youth in the region;
   2. Providing a skilled clientele base;

3. Increasing student self-esteem, confidence
and positive interaction.

TAFEWA lecturers and Library staff supported the
project by facilitating visits to their areas of learning.
Members of the public donated their time and
expertise to the project by presenting practical talks
on topics such as the Avon Descent, hairdressing
and robotics. The Salvation Army provided reward
gifts for the students and The Christian Fellowship
provided lunches. The majority of the students that
participated in this project have since engaged in
further TAFE studies.
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities
Cultural Diversity and Language Services Outcomes

The BYO (Bring Your Own Culture, Experience,
Skills and Talent) Program was again a great
success in 2005, a follow on from the previous year’s
program. The BYO Program was funded by the
Department of Education & Training’s “Australians
Working Together” and culminated in a Graduation
ceremony in November with students showcasing
their new skills.

This multicultural learning program provided
preparation and access for further education and
training to people from Non-English Speaking
Backgrounds. The 2005 program had 23 enrolled
students, 10 of these were graduates from the 2004
program who returned as mentors to the 13 new
participants. 2005 Participants were of Filipino,
Chinese, Indian, Mauritius, Indonesian and West
Timorese origin.

Career Guidance was offered as part of the
program. As a result, nine participants plan to enrol
in the BYO program again, three are enrolling in the
Multimedia program at C.Y. O’Connor, six are taking
computing classes at their local telecentres and
three are seeking full-time or part-time employment
in their local communities.

2005 also saw the launch of the “Actions Speak
Larger than Words” Skills Recognition for Migrants.
The College developed a reference manual to
enhance migrants’ access to Recognition of Prior
Learning. The program was funded by the
Department of Education and Training.

The project targeted skilled migrants from Non-
English Speaking Backgrounds seeking
employment. This project assisted them to
undertake education, training and employment
pathways with the opportunity to fast track students
based on the results of the Skills Recognition
process.

The aim of the project was to develop a  booklet
which defines and describes the processes
involved. The information was presented in a pictorial
format booklet with minimal text. The booklet
specifically addressed Certificates in Automotive,
Rural Operations and Children’s Studies, yet could

be adapted for any
qualification. The
booklet was well
received by the target

BYO group at the end
of their Graduation
performance
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities
Customer Focus

group and is currently being trialled with the
Overseas Qualification Unit.

The Literacy for Mum and Bub program was also
launched in 2005, funded by the Department of
Education and Training, “Australians Working
Together”. The program was aimed at young
mothers with children 0–4 years of age. Sixteen
students were enrolled in the program with 10
successfully completing.

Participants developed action plans which indicated
their willingness to go back to TAFE for further
education and training in courses such as Teacher
Assistant, Child Care Worker and New
Opportunities for Women.  Furthermore, the action
plan assisted the participants to build good
relationship with their partners and children.

Throughout 2005 there were 539 Indigenous
students enrolled across all campuses and learning
areas. There were 69 students enrolled in CGEA
(Certificate of General Education for Adults), 109 in
Primary Industries, 243 in Trades, 244 in business
and 47 in Indigenous specific courses.

In 2005 the College conducted a successful
program for Indigenous School Based Trainees.  59
Year 10 Indigenous high school students enrolled
in the program and graduates were awarded
Certificate I in Work Readiness. 2005 is the third
year of the program which teaches students
valuable employability skills and enables them to
be work ready and to assist their transition to Year
11 and 12 VET courses.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is committed to
providing customers with a quality service which they
value as being responsive to their needs and
expectations. The College endeavours to enhance
student support wherever possible.

This commitment to customer focus has resulted
in:
• Regular customer service meetings for frontline

staff and Customer Service Officers to ensure
key information is disseminated in a timely fashion
to enhance customer service;

• Continuous improvement of AQTF processes;
• Continued partnering arrangements with the

department of Justice, including delivering training
within WA prisons;

• Continued partnerships with High schools in the
region to deliver VET to school students;

• Increased delivery of school-based traineeships
which serves to strengthen articulation pathways
for further education in the Wheatbelt;

• Continued relationship with CCI Employfast;
• A continued working relationship with key

stakeholders within the community and industry.
College membership on the Apprentice and
Traineeship Working Group ensures a regional
perspective is represented;

• Strengthened relationships with the Telecentre
Network to enhance the community’s access to
training;

• The College has implemented the Job Search
service to current students and graduates, which
incorporates Job Search assistance and Job
Search workshops. Staff have undertaken training
within each of the four main campuses to deliver
this service.  This service is also being delivered
to our VET in school students and graduates.
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities
Disability Services Plan
Outcomes
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is committed to
meeting community obligations and legal
requirements under the West Australian Equal
Opportunity Amendment (1998) and Disability
Services Act (1993).

The College has implemented a Disability Services
Plan which aligns with the College Strategic
Direction and is in accordance with the WA
Department of Training commitment to employment
outcomes for students with a disability.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is funded for disability
services by the Department of Education and
Training through the Delivery and Performance
Agreement (DPA) and the College provides the
salary payment for an Access and Equity Officer.

The majority of the DPA component is spent either
on tutoring support for students or for the purchase
of essential equipment to enable students with a
disability to participate in the learning process.

In 2005 the College assisted 16 students over four
campuses with tutor support. These students
required one on one supervision and support. Many
of them, especially in the General Education for
Adults courses, have an intellectual disability and
require many hours per week of social supervision
and tutoring support.

Three students signed up during 2005 to take part
in an innovative student mentoring program.

Conducted in partnership with EDGE Employment
Solutions, the program gave one on one mentoring
with industry specific mentors. To qualify, the
students needed to have some form of disability,
and be seeking employment.

Student Mentoring Program

The program aimed to demystify the work
environment, while employers gained awareness of
TAFE graduates and an appreciation of their abilities.
The College believes it is important for everyone to
have access to a high standard of training, and the
EDGE program provided a great way for students
to gain practical industry experience.

A student mentor from Northam Senior High School
was formally recognised during 2005 for her
contribution to the program. Leonie Whisson works
in the Education Support Unit at Northam Senior
High School, and was tutoring a student who was
doing a bridging course with a view to enrolling in
the popular Teacher Assistant course.

Peer mentoring was found to be very successful,
with the program enabling students with a disability
to gain exposure to industries related to their field of
study and to identify a mentor who could provide
practical and theoretical knowledge of that industry.

In memory of Access and Equity Officer, James Dawson
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Economic Outcomes

The Economy
To develop a strong economy that delivers more jobs,

more opportunities and great wealth to Western
Australians by creating the conditions required for

investment and growth.

C.Y. O’Connor College provides a range of vocational
education and training products and services to
support the growth of a diversified regional economy
and address local and state wide skill shortages.
The College’s strategic objectives include developing
and implementing learning strategies and programs
which are recognised as being responsive to industry
driven client lifelong learning needs. Aligned to this
goal to meet the diverse needs of clients in our
community there is a particular focus on increasing
the participation of: people from diverse
backgrounds; industry clients; 15–19 year olds;
Indigenous groups; and people with a disability.

The College works closely with industry and
community groups, in addition to the Industry
Advisory Groups which have been established to
gain relevant and current advice on industry trends

and training needs. The College’s strategic
objectives include the promotion of quality training
by conducting regular community consultation
forums in regional centres to identify industry and
community skills deficits and effectively align training
delivery to support emerging industries and deploy
resources appropriately throughout the regions.

The College promotes and encourages a variety of
training delivery partnerships to facilitate articulation
arrangements and increase retention and
employment rates. We have worked effectively with
a range of industry groups and Industry Training
Councils to maintain significant levels of workplace
delivery and assessment and subsequently the
number of apprenticeship and traineeships.

The College has endeavoured to improve Indigenous
participation and completion rates through

collaborative planning with
schools, Aboriginal
Corporations and through
regular consultation with the
Aboriginal Advisory Education
Training Committees which
comprise staff, students,
community members and
Aboriginal Corporations. The
College’s career and
employment advisory
department identifies diverse
employment opportunities for
Indigenous peoples and has
implemented a number of
strategies to align students with
the relevant skills and
aspirations to meet these
opportunities.

Horticulture Students,
Northam Campus
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VET for school students delivery has increased
markedly throughout C.Y. O’Connor College through
established partnerships with five Senior and five
District High Schools in the Wheatbelt, as well as
Kelmscott Senior High School and the WA Colleges
of Agriculture at their Cunderdin and Narrogin
Campuses. Similarly, the College has worked
closely with the University sector to develop and
support articulation pathways to ensure Lifelong
Learning opportunities are available to all. Regular
liaison with the sector specific Industry Advisory
Groups ensure that the College’s training maintains
currency with industry expectations and standards
and that our graduates meet their employment and
career objectives.

In 2005, under CY Career Focus-TAFE Plus, the
College implemented comprehensive career
development services to provide guidance for
students transition from school to TAFE, higher
education and work. There has been a continued
focus on the retention of the 15 to 17 year old cohort,
with the raising of the school leaving age, through
the development and implementation of District
Education and Training Plans.

Economic Outcomes

The Economy

The College has continued to increase its research
and development capacity and create an
environment that encourages innovation and
capitalises on the region’s comparative advantage.
The College has maintained its research and
development partnership with Springfield Waters
Aquaculture, Challenger TAFE and McRobert’s
Aquaculture. The Inland Saline Aquaculture
Demonstration Farm based in Northam is hosting a
three-year research project funded by the State and
Federal governments considering the feasibility of
growing commercial quantities of marine finfish in
the Wheatbelt’s salt-affected areas. Trials to date
indicate that utilizing the new award-winning
technology known as the Semi-Intensive Floating
Tank System, developed by McRobert Aquaculture
Systems, production of species such as barramundi
and trout has been estimated at 25t/ha per year, a
five fold increase. The results of this research will
be used to develop the local industry on a
commercial basis with the necessary training being
conducted in workshop format for Wheatbelt
farmers.

A culture of holistic financial accountability has
developed throughout the College with the aim of
strategically managing Colleges finances to ensure
responsive growth and sustainable financial
outcomes, as well as adherence to the Business
Plan. The College has also made significant
progress in streamlining and implementing more
effective business practices and protocols to ensure
compliance with Government Regulations and
Legislation.

Semi Intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS)
interior view of tanks.
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Environmental Outcomes

The Environment
In 2005, the College incorported sustainability in its

Strategic and Operational Planning and is progressing
the incorporation of sustainability principles in its

vocational education and training delivery services.

In late 2004, the College adopted the Sustainability
Action Plan 2005 – 2007. During 2005 the College
established a Sustainability Working Group,
comprising a cross section of staff representatives,
to assist in progressing the actions outlined in this
plan. This group has developed a Sustainability
Charter which outlines the College’s approach to
adopting sustainability principles.

The College Sustainability Action Plan included a
number of priorities for 2005, the achievement of
which is detailed below:

• College Strategic Management processes and
decisions reflect the integration of environmental
protection, social advancement and economic
prosperity with the Strategic and Operational
Planning framework being based on the triple
bottom line approach. The College’s Mission
Statement encompasses sustainability through
the enhancement of the community’s skills to
further economic, environmental and social
development.

• The preparation of this Annual Report is in
accordance with the 2005 Annual Reporting
Framework and reflects a triple bottom line
approach as part of these requirements.

• In November 2005 the College conducted a
Community Consultation Forum to determine the
level of interest in establishing a community
garden at the Northam Campus. The garden will
encompass multicultural horticultural activities
based on Northam’s European migrant and
aboriginal past.The College made a conscious
decision to embrace the community in this project
and this demonstrates the College’s commitment
to consulting and involving citizens. Further
activity on this project is planned for 2006.

• College currently complies with the Buying
Wisely suite of policies and, where possible,
procurement outside of the region is restricted
to only unavailable non-regional expenditure.
Fleet Policy Guidelines are being complied with
and constant reviews are undertaken to ensure
the most fuel efficient vehicles are in the fleet. A
minimal number of 6 cylinder vehicles are now
in the fleet with further reductions planned.

• College has applied and received funding for an
audit on energy consumption and proposals for
reduction initiatives currently in progress. A
recycling program for bottles, plastic, paper
cardboard is currently being established.

• Funding has been sought for the installation of
rainwater tanks for Moora and Northam
Campuses to serve horticulture areas and
gardens.

• Through the establishment of the College
Sustainability Working Group in 2005, strategies
have been developed to conduct Professional
and Career Development (PACD) for academic
staff to assist in the implementation of
sustainability into training programs. Resources
to assist trainers have been sourced with PACD
to commence in early 2006.

Sustainability
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Energy Smart Government
Policy
Throughout the year the College continued to
implement and foster a culture of energy thriftiness.
Specifically targeted was the use of lighting, heating
and air conditioning, which accounts for a
substantial component of the College’s energy
consumption.  It is important to note that the College
does not have any climate controlled buildings.  As
such, variations in climatic temperature conditions
can result in subsequent swings in energy
consumption.

Environmental Outcomes

The Environment

C.Y. O’Connor College is committed to achieving
the Government’s reduction in energy consumption
targets and to this end achieved a saving in excess
of 7% for the year.

Stationary Energy
Consumption (GJ)

Energy Cost ($)
Stationary Energy
Costs ($)

Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
(tonnes of CO2)

Baseline 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 Saving Saving Saving
2002/03 2003/04 2004/05

1835 1657 1798 1702 9.67% 2% 7.2%

75,333 67,659 70,660 67,297 7,674 4,667 8,036

416 409 402 371 7 14 45
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Regional Outcomes

The Wheatbelt Region

C.Y. O’Connor College is an innovative and
progressive organisation, committed to meeting the
education and training needs of the rural and remote
communities we service in the Wheatbelt. The
College is comprised of four regional Campuses,
located in Northam, Merredin, Moora and Narrogin.
Additional TAFE centres operate in Kellerberrin,
Pingelly, Kondinin, Quairading, Jurien Bay and
Bindoon. With an area of 154,000 square kilometres
encompassing 44 shires, and a population of 72,000,
the Wheatbelt region is one of Western Australia’s
most sparsely distributed regions. The College
operates in an environment of very thin markets with
traditionally the lowest training participation rate in
publicly funded VET of all the regions in Western
Australia.

Our determination to take a leadership role in the
economic, social and sustainable environmental
development of the Wheatbelt is reflected in the
College Mission Statement, which aims to promote
a stronger regional economy by developing
partnerships with local business and community
groups to identify training needs and skills shortages
and enhance the region’s skills base.

Underpinning this achievement is a set of core
values, which reflect the College’s commitment to
consistently high standards of customer service.
Also, endeavouring at all times to ensure equitable
access to services and facilities for clients and staff
regardless of age, gender, ethnicity, disability or
location. The College promotes a culture which
encourages initiative, innovation and active
participation in the development and implementation
of more streamlined processes and improved
training services.

Lifelong learning opportunities have been established
in the region through identification of multiple learning
pathways and improved choices in education,
training and work. Increased use of Information
Communications and Technology has  provided
better services and greater accessibility for the

broader community. The Youth Advantage Strategy
has seen the implementation of several programs
supporting “youth at risk”, in particular, disengaged
15–19 year old youth. The trial of the Careers on
Track in Narrogin provided support to this cohort
through career advice and individual training plans.

Improved Indigenous participation, completion rates
and employment outcomes, especially at Certificate
III and above, have been a priority for the College
and a number of strategies have been implemented.
The College employs Aboriginal Program  Assistants,
Development Officers and lecturers to mentor and
support Indigenous students and provide positive
role modeling. Successful  Aboriginal School-Based
Trainee programs were conducted throughout the
region with positive outcomes, students either being
retained at school, attending TAFE or gaining
employment with ongoing training opportunities.
These initiatives have achieved increased student
self-esteem and confidence and created positive
engagement, alongside basic skills development for
entry into the workplace.

The College has also made a concerted effort in
2005 to support employers of trainees and
apprentices to understand the benefits and
obligations of workplace training. This enhanced
relationship has seen markedly improved student
satisfaction rates for clients in Enterprise Based
Training for employee/employer relationships and
learning the skills required to perform the job as well
as an overall increase in student satisfaction from
83% to 85%.

The result of these strategies is a College attuned
and responsive to its rural and remote communities,
conscious of the responsibility it has in being the
only public provider servicing the entire region,
respected for its local knowledge and expertise and
recognised for its broad accessibility through flexible
delivery options.
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance
Report on Governing Council

Accountable Officer’s Report

The College is a statutory authority which is largely
financed from public funds and is accountable to
the State Parliament through the Minister for
Education and Training.

The College is a public sector agency in its own
right, which means it must comply with legislation
covering a range of matters including financial
administration, staffing, occupational health, safety
and welfare, equal opportunity, freedom of
information and codes of conduct.

The Council, as the Governing body of the College,
acts on behalf of the community in organising and
managing the resources allocated to the College
for the provision of vocational and further education.
The Council is a ‘body corporate’ with the power to
do all that is necessary to fulfil its functions under
the Vocational Education and Training Act (1996). It
is a self-governing statutory authority.

The Accountable Officer for C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE is Mr Peter Mahler, the Managing Director,
of C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

The functions of the council include the following:

1.To prepare a College Training Profile for the
approval of the Minister, as and when required
by the Minister.

2.To approve the Strategic and Operational
Management Plans for the College.

3.To oversee the implementation of the College
Strategic and Operational Management Plans.

4.To monitor the College’s performance and initiate
improvements where necessary.

5.To ensure the College’s programs and services
are responsive to and meet the needs of industry,
students and the community.

6.To ensure that conditions of contracts and
agreements entered into on behalf of the College
are met. Including the Delivery and Performance
Agreement, contracts of employment, audited
statements of accounts and commercial
contracts and arrangements.

Art students work, foyer, Northam Campus
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

• Public Sector Management Act (1994)
• Salaries and Allowances Act (1975)
• Sales Tax (Exemptions and Classifications) Act

(1992)
• School Education Act (1999)
• Secondary Education Authority Act (1984)
• State Records Act (2000)
• State Superannuation Act (2000)
• State Supply Commission Act (1991)
• Workers Compensation and Assistance Act (1981)
• Vocational Education and Training Act (1996)

• Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission
Act (2005)

• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax Act)
(1999)

• Archives Act (1983)
• Australian National Training Authority Act (1992)
• Copyright Act (1968)
• Disability Discrimination Act (1992)
• Employment, Education and Training Act (1988)
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act (1986)
• Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission

Act (1986)
• Income Tax Assessment Act (1936)
• Indigenous Education (Targeted Assistance) Act (2000)
• Industrial Relations Act (1990) (Commonwealth)
• Industrial Relations Reform Act (1993)
• Privacy Act (1988)
• Racial Discrimination Act (1975)
• Sex Discrimination Act (1984)
• State Grants (Technical & Training Fees Reimbursement

 Act (1974)
• Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act

(1992)
• Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act (1992)
• Trade Practices Act (1974)
• Vocational Education and Training Fund Act (1992)
• Workplace Relations Act (1996)
• Age Discrimination Act (2004)
• Copyright Amendment (Digital Agenda) Act (2000)
• Cybercrime Act (2001)
• Disabilities Services Act (1986)
• Freedom of Information Act (1982)
• Income Tax Act (1986)
• Income Tax Rate Act (1986)

Enabling Legislation
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE was established as an
autonomous institution, in accordance with section 35 of
the Vocational Education and Training Act (1996), effective
from 1 January 2001.

Leglislation impacting on the College:
State Legislation

• Anti-Corruption Commission Act (1988)
• Censorship Act (1996)
• Corporations (WA) Act (1990)
• Criminal Code Act Compilation (1913)
• Disability Services Act (1993)
• Education Service Providers (Full fee overseas

students) Registration Act (1991)
• Electoral Act (1907)
• Electronic Transactions Act (2003)
• Equal Opportunity Act (1984)
• Evidence Act (1906)
• Fair Trading Act (1987)
• Financial Administration & Audit Act (1985) &

Treasurer’s Instructions
• Freedom of Information Act (1992)
• Government Employees Superannuation Act (1987)
• Government Financial Responsibility Act (2000)
• Industrial and Commercial Training Act (1965-1980)
• Industrial Relations Act (1979)
• Industrial Training Act (1975)
• Interpretation Act (1984)
• Labour Relations Reform Act (2002)
• Library Board of WA  Act (1951)
• Limitation Act (2005)
• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act (1993)
• Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act (1984)
• Occupiers Liability Act (1985)
• Parliamentary Commissioner Act (1971)
• Public and Bank Holidays Act (1972)
• Public Disclosure Act (2003)

Federal Legislation
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Equal Opportunity Employment
Outcomes
The College is committed to being an equal
employment opportunity employer and has
continued to develop policies and educate staff to
reflect this.

This year the College continued to monitor the C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE Equity and Diversity Plan
2003–2005. This demonstrates the College’s
commitment to its responsibilities under Section IX
of the Equal Opportunity Act (1984).  The plan
provides the College’s Equity and Diversity
objectives and strategies for their achievement.

Throughout the year training was undertaken for staff
on chairing and participating on selection panels,
and cultural awareness.

Evaluation of Programs
The Vocational Education and Training Act (1996)
requires the College to provide Vocational Education
and Training consistent with the College Training
Profile. The College is therefore required to meet
the profile and other requirements as specified in
the Delivery and Performance Agreement entered
into with the Western Australian Department of
Education and Training.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has continued to
survey its clients through a number of mechanisms
such as the Student Unit Evaluation Program. This
survey is aimed at obtaining direct feedback from
customers.

Freedom of Information
Members of the public seeking access to
documents under the Freedom of Information (FOI)
Act (1992) are invited to contact:

The Freedom of Information Co-ordinator
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
PO Box 498 Northam WA 6401
Phone: (08) 9622 3905 Fax: (08) 9622 6763

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE received no
applications under the FOI act in 2005.

Trades Lecturer, Damien Della-Maddelena

Trade Practices Act

There were no reported breaches of the Trade
Practices Act during 2005.

No members of the Governing Council or Senior
Officers of the College have any interest in any
contract or proposed contract with the College.

Interests in Contracts
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Public Sector Standards

Report on Compliance
For the Period

1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005
As Required by Section 31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act (1994)

To the best of my knowledge, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has complied with the Public
Sector Standards in Human Resource Management for:

• Recruitment, Selection and Appointment
• Transfer
• Secondment
• Performance Management
• Redeployment
• Termination
• Discipline
• Temporary Deployment (Acting)
• Grievance Resolution

as well as with the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and the College Code of
Conduct.

Procedures are in place to ensure compliance and appropriate internal assessments have
been conducted to meet legislative requirements.

For the year 2005, there were no breaches against any of the Standards.

Peter Mahler
Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

14 February 2006
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Risk Management
The College has successfully embedded risk
management principles into management decision
making and has established a risk management
framework to ensure compliance with Treasury
Instruction 825 and consistent with the Australian
Standard 4360:1999.

A Risk Management Planning Day is held regularly
for all managers within the College.  During the year
modifications were carried out to the risk
management data base.

Pricing Policy
Fees and charges levied by the College were in
accordance with the requirements of the following;

• Vocational Education and Training Act (1996).
• Vocational Education and Training Regulations

1996.
• 2005 Policy Guidelines for Publicly Funded VET

Providers and Programs for Fees and Charges
issued by the Department of Education and
Training.

Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Advertising and Sponsorship
In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral
Act 1907, the following is a statement of all
expenditure incurred by C.Y. O’Connor College of
TAFE during 2005 in relation to advertising, market
research, polling, direct mail and media advertising
organisations:

Advertising Agencies nil
Market research organisations nil
Polling organisations nil
Direct mail organisations nil

Media Advertising Organisations

Marketforce Productions $24,698.43
Media Decisions $18,015.46
West Australian Newspapers $1,468.63
Rural Press $2,774.01
Other publications $3,243.64

Total $50,200.17

(GST exclusive)

Publications
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE publishes the
following items which are available free of charge
from the College.

Academic
• Fees & Charges Brochure
• Course Outlines (Online: Products & Services

Catalogue)
• Refund Policy Brochure

Marketing & Community Relations
• 2005 Student Diary
• Website
• Four master course brochures semester one

(one per region)
• Four master course brochures semester two

(one per region)
• All Directions (student newsletter, February, June

and November)
• The Inside Edge (bi-monthly editions)
• Various subject brochures (DL)
• Annual Report 2004

Public Interest Disclosure
The Public Interest Disclosure Act (2003) came into
effect on 1 July 2003, requiring the College to:

• Facilitate the disclosure of public interest
information;

• Provide protection for those who make
disclosures;

• Provide protection for those who are the subject
of a disclosure.

College Policy COD08: Public Interest Disclosure.
This policy details internal procedures relating to the
College’s obligations under the Act, and the
protection for persons who make disclosures under
the Act. This Public Interest disclosure function is
delegated to the office of the Director of Research
and Planning. No Public Interest Disclosure requests
were reported during 2005.
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Recruitment
The College continued to advertise as widely as
possible to attract the best candidates for all
positions.  For the year a total of 57 positions were
advertised.

Acting Opportunities
The College demonstrated an ongoing commitment
to investing in its staff by providing acting
opportunities.  For the year 2005 there were 26 acting
opportunities.

During 2005, the equivalent of 163 staff participated
in a total of 70 different PACD activities.  A number
of whole of College and area specific PACD activities
were held during the year. These included:

• Whole of College Induction day
• Cultural Awareness Training
• Staff Selection Panel Training
• Defensive Driving
• OS&H Representatives Training
• Verbal Judo
• Procurement Training

Corruption Prevention

Professional & Career
Development

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE complies with the
Occupational Safety and Health Act (1984). The
College has a comprehensive program for
monitoring, skills development, staff participation
and reporting to ensure requirements of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act (1984) are met.

An Occupational Safety & Health Committee was
established and meetings are held every six weeks
throughout the year.  During 2005 two new officers
were trained as safety and health representatives
for the work place and two officers attended
advanced training for OS&H representatives.

Agreement

FTE People FTE

73 66.6  59    54.48

People

General Agreement Lecturer’s Certified

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has undertaken
reviews of relevant policies with respect to the issue
of corruption and misconduct, with attention being
paid to the issues of unauthorised access and
disclosure of confidential information.

College Policy ITD04: IT Security embodies the
delegated responsibility for managing compliance
with privacy requirements and computer security
within the role of the Manager Information
Technology.

College Policy COD20: Confidentiality Policy
delegates the responsibility for managing and
securing the confidentiality of student records to the
Director of Research and Planning.

College Policy HRD06: Employee Code of Conduct
incorporates advice to staff on appropriate process
to be followed to protect confidential information.

College Policy HRD06: Employee Code of Conduct
specifies the process to be followed with respect to
the acceptance of gifts and hospitality in accordance
with TI 407. The College has also developed a
register of gifts and benefits for the disclosure of
gifts or benefits in excess of $50.00 in monetary
value.

In addition to the policies and procedures established
above, the College will further develop the processes
with respect to the Premier’s Circular on Corruption
prevention, with the Department of Education and
Training’s internal audit section.

Occupational Safety & Health

Staffing
The average College staffing level for the Year 2005
was 144.75 FTE.
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Scholarships and Awards

2005 WA Young Achiever Award in Career
Achievement: James Paxman, Youth Work lecturer.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Innovation Award,
Academic Area: Delia Pascua-McGlew.

Round One finalist in the Premier’s Teacher of the
Year Awards: Delia Pascua-McGlew, Humanities.

Round Two finalist of the Premier’s Teacher of the
Year Awards: Jenny Miller-Nixon, Ceramics and
Pottery lecturer, Northam Campus

Finalist, 2005 Training Excellence Awards, Arrix
Trainer of the Year, Helen Hayward, Moora.

WA Youth Award in Leadership: James Paxman.

Northam Art Prize Rural Theme Section: Anthony
Lusk.

Lecturers

Students
Student Diary Cover Competition Winner:
Ziggi Norrish, Multimedia Student, Northam.

PALS awards: C.Y. O’Connor College and Northam
Senior High School Aboriginal School-based
Trainees won the Southern Region secondary
schools section for their group project of a
reconcilation sculpture.

Winner of the Daywear Category of the Teenage
Fashion Awards Narrogin: Tilly Atwell, Clothing
Production student, Narrogin.
Third place, Daywear Category of the State Finals
of the Apex Teenage Fashion Awards in Perth:
Tilly Atwell.

Semi Finalist in the 2005 Western Australian Training
Excellence Awards, Jean Monds, Business Trainee.

Section winner, Northam Art Prize: Margot Watkins
(Ceramics)
Keela Dreaming Festival Kellerberrin, First Prize
Marilyn Reidy, (former Quairading Art student),
Second prize Gail Kickett, (Narrogin Art student).

Programs/College

Inland Saline Aquaculture project at Springfield
Waters Aquaculture Northam, grand finalist in ABC
TV’s The New Inventors Program, 2005 and finalist
in the Premier’s Awards, Environmental Category.

Staff Excellence Awards, Semester 1 2005
Aged Care Team (Liz Haythornthwaite, Ben Isbill,
Sharron Nottle)
Liz Haythornthwaite, Aged Care Lecturer, Northam
Helen Hayward, Horticulture lecturer, Moora
Delia Pascua-McGlew, Lecturer, Northam
Anthony Silla, Youth Work Lecturer, Northam.

James Paxman, 2005 WA Young Achiever Award
and WA Youth Award in Leadership.

Peter Mahler presents Delia Pascua-McGlew
with her Certificate for Round One of the

Premier’s Teacher of the Year Awards
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Key Performance Indicators
and Financial Statements

Report on Outcomes
Certification of Key Performance Indicators
Audit Report on Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicators Report
Financial Statements Declaration
Audit Report on Financial Statements
Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements

Section Three
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Outcome
The provision of vocational education and training services to meet community and industry training needs.

Outputs
Organisation Performance Information

Quantity (Effectiveness)

Quality (Effectiveness)

2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005
Measure Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Student Satisfaction
Percentage 85% 85% 85% 83% 85% 85%

Graduate Satisfaction
Percentage 80% 85% 85% 85% 86% 88%

Graduate Employment
Percentage 78% 77% 78% 77% 80% 83%

Successful Training
Completions (MLOR)
Percentage 70% 62% 62% 66.74% 65% 62.72%

2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005
Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Student Curriculum
Hours (SCH) 700,000 626,400 650,000 619,938 598,000 602,451

Profile (College
Resource Agreement) 570,848 568,138 570,848 571,471 523,000 496,313

Non-Profile (Commercial
Activities) 129,152 58,262 79,152 48,467 75,000 79,451

Access and Participation 100,000 86,214 90,000 71,823 56,700 52,620

Outcome, Outputs and Organisational Performance Information (Effectiveness)

Measure

Report on Operations
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2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005
Measure Actual Target Actual Target Target Actual

College Delivery and
Performance Agreement   December   December   December   December   December December
Received

Targets determined by Executive in consultation with Academic Managers and Directors.

Costs (Efficiency)

2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005
Measure Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Cost per SCH for
Aggregate College
Delivery $16.50 $18.72 $18.21 $19.10 $19.00 $19.10

Timeliness (Effectiveness)
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Report on Operations

Access and Participation SCH
Delivery Levels

Access and Participation courses provide general
education and employment preparation for special
needs groups. Courses are designed to meet the
specific needs of Indigenous people, women,
Australians of culturally and linguistically diverse
backgrounds and other special needs groups.

Notes:
The information for Access and Equity is based on
SCH delivery and measures the extent to which the
college is meeting the skills and training
requirements of special needs groups. The measure
is calculated using profile and non-profile SCH in
stream 2000 courses, plus non-stream 2000
courses designed for targeted special needs groups
(from the College Management Information System)
and is expressed as a percentage of C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE’s total SCH delivery.

Explanation:
The percentage of Access and Participation SCH
achieved is slightly below the target. C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE remains committed to meeting the
requirements of special needs groups in the
Wheatbelt community.

Percentage of Non-Profiled Activity
against Total College SCH

This indicator reveals the amount of College delivery
which is undertaken to meet the training needs of
industry, community and individuals that is additional
to the College profile and conducted under
commercial arrangements.

Notes:
This Performance Indicator was based on data from
the College’s Management Information System
(CMIS). It shows the percentage of non-profile SCH
achieved compared to the Total College SCH. Non-
profile delivery is that which is funded by means other
than through the Delivery and Performance
agreement between C.Y. O’Connor College and the
WA Department of Training.

Explanation:
The percentage of non-profile activity is greater than
the target set, there has been a  continued focus on
the development of fee for service and other
commercial activity.

Percentage of Access and Participation SCH

15%

10%

5%

0%

20%

2003 2004 2005 2005
Target

11%

13.76%

11%

Profile and Non Profile SCH

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

100%

Profile Non-Profile

2003 2004 2005 2005
Target

7%9.30%

90.70%

10.6%

93%
12.5% 13.8%

87.5% 86.2%
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
for the year ended 31 December 2005

We hereby Certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s
performance and fairly represent the performance of C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE for
the period 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005.

Peter Mahler Alison Woodman
Managing Director Chair, Governing Council
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

14 February 2006



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
C Y O’CONNOR COLLEGE OF TAFE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial 
position of the C Y O’Connor College of TAFE at 31 December 2005 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in 
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s Instructions;  

(ii) the controls exercised by the College provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, 
expenditure and investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and 
the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

(iii) the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the College are 
relevant and appropriate to help users assess the College’s performance and fairly 
represent the indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2005. 

 
Scope 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate 
systems of internal control for preparing the financial statements and performance indicators, 
and complying with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (the Act) and other 
relevant written law. 

The financial statements consist of the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes 
in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Act, I have independently audited the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators to express an opinion on the financial statements, controls and 
performance indicators. This was done by testing selected samples of the evidence. Further 
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer 
"http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf". 

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and 
performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit 
does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should 
identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the 
financial statements and performance indicators. 

 
D D R PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
24 March 2006 
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Key Performance Indicators

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has developed Key Performance Indicators which enable
the College and its stakeholders to assess and monitor the achievement of its operations
and to enhance public accountability for performance.

The Indicators report on both profile and non-profile training delivery under continuous review
to improve definitions, remove ambiguity and to ensure that changing customer expectations,
technology and the quality of the provision of Vocational Education and Training are taken
into account. They relate to the organisation’s strategic priorities and outcomes.

Desired Outcome
The provision of vocational education and training
services to meet community and industry training
needs.

Effectiveness Indicators
The Effectiveness Indicators measure:
• Graduate Satisfaction
• Student Satisfaction
• Graduate Employment Status
• College Training Profile

The National Centre for Vocational Education
Research conducts surveys with an appropriate
sample design to produce statistically reliable
College level data in alternative years commencing
from 2005.

BYO group Boulevard performance, Northam
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Key Performance Indicators

The 2005 Student Satisfaction Survey was
conducted by Colmar Brunton Intelligence for the
Department of Education and Training and TAFEWA
Colleges. The survey was divided into two separate
survey instruments, one focussed on the needs of
Employment Based Students (EBS) and the other
on Institution Based Students (IBS).

The survey results are used by the College to
formulate policy and enact changes aimed at
improving the quality and relevance of the courses
offered. In addition, the research is used to identify
priorities for enhancing the quality of teaching,
learning and assessment and to identify priorities
for facilities development, aimed at improving
student satisfaction with their college experience.
This enables C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE to
focus resources on a needs basis to maximise the
quality of the learning experience.

All students who had undertaken a course of study
in 2004 were eligible to take part in the survey.
Potential respondents were invited to respond to the
receipt of a mail based survey, followed by a
secondary dispatch to target groups who exhibited
lower response rates. These responses were
augmented by an on-line version and targeted
telephone based follow up. All students had the
opportunity to take part in the survey, even if they
were not sent a paper-based survey.

Response rates and sample error calculations for
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE are outlined below.

In 2005 two major student surveys were conducted to provide information
about graduates and students in training.

Student Outcomes Survey
The 2005 Student Outcomes Survey was conducted on behalf of the National Centre for Vocational Education
Research (NCVER) with funding from the Australian National Training Authority (ANTA).

The aim of the 2005 Student Outcome Survey was to measure Vocational Education and Training (VET)
employment outcomes, further study destinations, opinions of the participants on the courses completed
and general student characteristics.

The 2005 survey was administered to students who completed a Technical and Further Education (TAFE)
course in 2004 at C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

Student Satisfaction Survey

Response Rates
O v e r a l l
Standard
Error

Population Individual Sample % of Individual % + or -
(Useable Students Achieved Students Students
Records) Contacted Resp. Contacted

  1190 1189 318 27% 141 3.77%
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Key Performance Indicators

Notes
The published percentages in this report are
calculated on the basis of the number of “valid”
responses to each question. The “valid” responses
comprise the total number of survey respondents
less the number of respondents who did not answer
the particular question of reference. The method
used to calculate the percentages is the number of
graduates who achieved or partly achieved their
main reason for doing the course compared to the
number of valid responses, expressed as a
percentage.

Graduate Satisfaction

Effectiveness Indicator
Graduate Satisfaction is a Performance Indicator that
measures the extent to which C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE graduates believe that they had partly or
fully achieved their main reason for undertaking the
course and this is compared to the State and National
averages. The level of Graduate Satisfaction reflects
the extent to which the VET services provided by
the College are meetings community and industry
training needs.

 2003 2004 2005 2005
State State

Graduate Satisfaction

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

84%

100%

85%
78%

88%85%
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Key Performance Indicators

Student Satisfaction
Effectiveness Indicator
The Student Satisfaction Rating measures the
effectiveness of the College in meeting the training
needs of students of Wheatbelt community.

Notes
1048 institution based students were contacted to
provide a sample of 278 students—a 27% response
rate and 141 employment based students were
contacted to provide a sample of 40 students—a
28% response rate.

This Performance Indicator was calculated using
the collective responses reflecting how satisfied
students were with their course at the College. The
level of student satisfaction reflects the extent to
which the VET services provided by the College are
meeting community and industry training needs.

Graduate Employment Status

Effectiveness Indicator
The level of Graduate Employment reflects the
extent to which the VET training programs provided
by the College are meeting community and industry
training needs. A key objective of the College is to
provide graduates with the relevant skills to enter
the workforce and/or re-train for employment while
also meeting industry needs.

Explanation
In 2005, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE had a
Student Satisfaction level of 85%, which is in line
with the State Average of 85%. Inherent in this
measure is a figure of 41% of students who were
very satisfied, which is a satisfaction level 5% above
the State average. These figures confirm that C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE is positioned at the upper
end of the scale of very satisfied students, and in
line with other regional colleges and private training
providers in overall satisfaction.

Graduate Employment

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

100%

Employed Unemployed

12%

73% 74%

2003 2003 2005 2005
State State

Not in labour force

2003 2004 2005 2005
State

Student Satisfaction

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

100%

47%

Very Satisfied Satisfied

38%

44%

41%42%

41%

15%

3%
83%

14%

36%

49%

8%

12%

80%
77%

14%

9%
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Key Performance Indicators

Measure B: Percentage of achieved SCH
against profiled SCH by WADT Groups
Profile delivery is training which the WA Department
of Education and Training purchases from
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE under the terms of
the Delivery and Performance Agreement. C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE aims to provide training
that meets the needs of community and industry.
The Department of Education and Training
administers the State Training Profile under specific
industry groups which are aligned to industry and
community employment needs.

Achievement of College Profile

Effectiveness Indicator
Measure A: Percentage of achieved SCH
against profile delivery.
This information shows the percentage of SCH
achieved for profile funded activities as contracted
with the Department of Education and Training for
Vocational Education and Training through the
Delivery and Performance Agreement. The
percentage of Profile achieved reflects the measure
of the College’s ability to provide VET services to
satisfy the training needs of community and industry
groups within the context of the State Training Profile
parameters.

Notes
The 2005 Planned data was obtained from the 2005
Delivery and Performance Agreement. The Actual
2005 SCH is the total profile SCH from the College
Management Information System (CMIS). The
achieved profile delivery is derived from actual SCH
as a percentage of the total planned delivery.
Achievement of the College profile is a measure of
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s ability to meet the
total number of planned SCH as agreed with the
WA Department of Education and Training.

Explanation
In 2005, the College delivered 94.9% of its planned
Profile delivery. The College planned to deliver
523,000 SCH and actually delivered 496,313 Student
Curriculum Hours.

2003   2004      2004       2005
 Target

Percentage of Profile Achieved

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

100%
100%99.53% 100.12%

94.9%
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Key Performance Indicators

Notes
The 2005 Planned SCH data was obtained from the
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) with the
WA Department of Education and Training. Actual
SCH are obtained from the College Management
Information System (CMIS). The profile achievement
percentage was calculated by dividing the achieved
SCH by the planned SCH and expressed as a
percentage.

Explanation
The College continues to maintain its high level of
achievement in all the major WADT groups. As per
the State Training Strategy priorities for the Wheatbelt
for 2004–2006 include: Just-In-Time short training
programs to address specific and seasonal skill
need in the agricultural sector.

WADT Group Description

Recreation Sports and Entertainment
Visual and Performing Arts
Automotive
Building and Construction
Surveying and Building
Community Service Workers
Education and Childcare
Health
Finance Insurance Property Service Workers
Food Trades & Processing
Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings
Furniture Manufacture
Metal and Mining
Forestry Farming and Landcare
Fishing
Horticulture
Retail
Cooking
Hospitality
Tourism
Transport Trades Storage and Associated
Electrical and Electronic Engineering
Accounting and other Business Services
Management
Office and Clerical
Computing
Adult Literacy_ELS
Miscellaneous
Targeted Access and Participation Courses

TOTAL

Planned

4 000
35 900
25 100
20 000

2 000
61 000
56 256

-
500

2  000
4 500
5 000

25 000
63 076

2 314
35 000

4 615
7 295
1 000
9 000
6 000

-
20 400
13 500
38 600
59 492
47 000
11 700
10 600

570 848

01A
01B
02A
03A
03B
04A
04B
04C
05A
06A
07A
07B
09B
10B
10C
10D
12B
13A
13B
13C
14A
15A
16A
16B
16C
17A
19B
19D
19E

2004 2005

Actual%

104.08%
105.72%

88.76%
56.86%

205.50%
105.65%

97.39%
-

85.20%
0%

43.22%
100.10%

95.85%
118.97%

29.39%
81.02%
92.18%

132.27%
602.80%

76.24%
173.60%

-
84.69%
84.30%
99.78%

102.10%
114.66%

20.03%
147.74%

100.12%

Actual

4 163
37 952
22 278
11 372

4 110
64 446
54 785

-
426

0
1 945
5 005

23 962
75 042

680
28 358

4 254
9 649
6 028
6 862

10 416
-

17 277
11 380
38 515
60 743
53 820

2 343
15 660

571 471

WADT
Group

In the medium term, in response to labour trends,
employment growth projections and consultation
with regional stakeholders, training priorities include:
Community Services—particularly those in Aged
Care, Small Business Management, Land
Management, Rural Business Management, literacy
and numeracy and computer training, Automotive
and Skills Recognition and training for indigenous
people in Visual Arts and Cultural Tourism.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s profile planning
reflects these trends.

Planned

5 500
31 900
31 100

7 000
4 000

71 838
48 352

-
500

1 500
5 000
6 000

29 500
55 400

500
30 000

4 700
5 295
2 500
8 000

700
-

10 415
13 500
41 100
52 000
38 100

1 000
17 600

523 000

Actual

5 113
31 640
26 875

5 098
2 430

61 573
47 490

-
70

1 620
3 070
4 932

22 414
63 517

0
28 326

6 359
6 520
3 249
8 503

200
-

11 860
13 990
40 670
48 174
37 800

440
14 380

496 313

Actual%

92.96%
99.18%
86.41%
72.83%
60.75%
85.71%
98.22%

-
14%

108%
61.4%
82.2%

75.98%
114.65%

0%
94.42%
135.3%

123.14%
129.96%
106.29%

28.57%
-

113.87%
103.63%

98.95%
92.64%
99.21%

44%
81.7%

94.9%

The following table represents the breadth of the College’s delivery.
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Efficiency Indicator
The efficiency indicator measures the overall cost
per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) for total College
delivery.

Notes
The Cost per SCH Performance Indicator is a
measure of C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s
efficiency and is averaged across all programs and
is inclusive of all funding.

This measure is derived by dividing the Total
Operating Expenses, measured on an accrual basis,
by the total Student Curriculum Hours delivered. The
data comes from the financial statement.

Explanation
The overall Cost per Student Curriculum Hour for
2005 is $19.10. This is the same as last year’s figure
of $19.10.

Cost per SCH

$10

$0

$20

41% 48%41%
$15

$5

$18.20

$19.10

   2003  2004 2005 2005
Target

$19.10$19.00
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In the year ending 31 December 2005

The accompanying financial statements for C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 from proper
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ending 31 December
2005 and the financial position as at 31 December 2005.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars
included in the Financial Statements misleading or inaccurate.

Brett Parker Alison Woodman
Principal Accounting Officer Chair, Governing Council
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

Peter Mahler
Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

14 February 2006



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
C Y O’CONNOR COLLEGE OF TAFE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial 
position of the C Y O’Connor College of TAFE at 31 December 2005 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in 
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s Instructions;  

(ii) the controls exercised by the College provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, 
expenditure and investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and 
the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

(iii) the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the College are 
relevant and appropriate to help users assess the College’s performance and fairly 
represent the indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2005. 

 
Scope 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate 
systems of internal control for preparing the financial statements and performance indicators, 
and complying with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (the Act) and other 
relevant written law. 

The financial statements consist of the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes 
in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Act, I have independently audited the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators to express an opinion on the financial statements, controls and 
performance indicators. This was done by testing selected samples of the evidence. Further 
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer 
"http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf". 

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and 
performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit 
does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should 
identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the 
financial statements and performance indicators. 

 
D D R PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
24 March 2006 
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INCOME STATEMENT 2005 2004

for the year ended 31 December 2005

Notes $ $

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses

Employee expenses 2 6,854,025               7,236,723               

Finance Costs 3 -                          1,341                      

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 547,453                  529,692                  

Supplies and services 5 2,187,090               2,295,832               

Grants and subsidies 6 36,677                    12,323                    

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 7 -                          17,586                    

Capital user charge 9 872,498                  725,521                  

Other expenses 10 497,454                  762,929                  

Total cost of services 10,995,197             11,581,947             

Income

Revenue 

Fee for service 11 463,612                  292,674                  

Student fees and charges 12 721,627                  699,411                  

Ancillary trading 13 -                          1,112                      

Commonwealth grants and contributions 14 -                          5,000                      

Profit on disposal of non-current assets 7 11,539                    -                          

Trading profit 8 63,058                    36,289                    

Interest revenue 79,132                    68,216                    

Other revenues 15 162,668                  67,594                    

Total Revenue 1,501,636               1,170,296               

Total Income other than from State Government 1,501,636               1,170,296               

NET COST OF SERVICES  (9,493,561)              (10,411,651)            

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 16 9,876,563               9,927,020               

Resources received free of charge 17 592,516                  616,389                  

Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 18 -                          5,059                      

Total income from State Government 10,469,079             10,548,468             

975,517                  136,817                  

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C.Y. O'Connor College of TAFE

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD
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C.Y. O'Connor College of TAFE

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2005 2005 2004

Notes $ $

ASSETS

Current Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 19 2,607,207               1,753,526               

Inventories 20 69,697                    94,304                    

Receivables 21 662,631                  358,842                  

Other current assets 22 4,197                      4,482                      

Total Current  Assets 3,343,732               2,211,154               

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 23 9,953,451               9,944,668               

Total Non-Current Assets 9,953,451               9,944,668               

Total assets 13,297,183             12,155,822             

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 25 3,153                      6,282                      

Provisions 26 673,581                  1,104,021               

Other current liabilities 27 839,086                  331,101                  

Total Current Liabilities 1,515,820               1,441,404               

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 26 368,815                  277,387                  

Total Non-Current Liabilities 368,815                  277,387                  

Total Liabilities 1,884,635               1,718,791               

NET ASSETS 11,412,548             10,437,031             

EQUITY 28

Reserves 1,368,142               1,368,142               

Accumulated Surplus 9,867,772               8,892,254               

Contribution by Owners 176,634                  176,635                  

TOTAL  EQUITY 11,412,548             10,437,031             

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 2005 2004

for the year ended 31 December 2005

Notes $ $

Balance of equity at the start of the period 10,437,031              8,990,670                

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Contributions by Owners 176,634                   176,634                   

RESERVES

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of period 1,368,142                235,233                   

Gain from asset revaluation -                           1,132,909                

Balance at end of period 1,368,142                1,368,142                

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)

Balance at start of period 8,892,255                8,755,437                

Total Income for the period 975,517                   136,818                   

Balance at end of period 9,867,772                8,892,255                

Balance of equity at the end of the period 11,412,548              10,437,031              

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C.Y. O'Connor College of TAFE
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2005 2005 2004

Notes $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Recurrent funding - Department of Education and Training 9,265,067                9,611,526                

Net cash provided by State Government 9,265,067                9,611,526                

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee costs (6,593,549)               (7,810,031)               

Supplies and services (1,466,679)               (1,526,734)               

Grants and subsidies (36,677)                    (12,323)                    

Finance Costs -                           (1,341)                      

Capital user charge (872,498)                  (892,900)                  

GST payments on purchases (259,396)                  (230,747)                  

GST payments to taxation authority (5,122)                      (34,568)                    

Other payments (182,546)                  542,731                   

Receipts

Fee for service 463,012                   292,674                   

Student fees and charges  721,627                   672,463                   

Ancillary trading - 1,112                       

Interest received 79,132                     63,734                     

Commonwealth grants and contributions - 5,000                       

GST receipts on sales 158,668                   121,345                   

GST receipts from taxation authority 96,210                     136,652                   

Other receipts 224,097                   126,857                   

Net cash used in operating activities 29 (7,673,721)               (8,546,076)               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of non-current physical assets 246,871                   247,036                   

Purchase of non-current physical assets (984,530)                  (697,187)                  

Net cash used in investing activities (737,659)                  (450,151)                  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Payment of finance lease liabilities -                           (10,046)                    

-                           

Net cash used in financing activities -                           (10,046)                    

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 853,687                   605,253                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,753,526                1,148,273                

   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 19 2,607,213                1,753,526                

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C.Y. O'Connor College of TAFE
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the Act provides for the financial year of a college to begin on 1 January and end on 31 December of each year.

Transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS)

The first published statements prepared under AIFRS are for the year ended 31 December 2005, in accordance with

Accounting Standard AASB 1 "First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards" 

Treasurer's Instruction 1106 "Transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards requires adoption of 

AASB 1 with certain modifications to ensure comparability and compliance with other Treasurer's Instructions. 

Reconciliations explaining the transition to AIFRS as at 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004 are provided within the notes to the

financial statements.

1 (i) Significant accounting policies

General Statement

Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Compliance with Australian equivalents to IFRS ensures that the financial report, comprising the College's financial 

statements and notes complies with IFRS. 

accountability requirements.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars rounded to the nearest dollar.

The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the College’s accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 1 (iii) ‘Judgements made by

 management in applying accounting policies’.

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have 

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

disclosed at note 1 (iv) ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity comprises the College and entities listed at note 36 ‘Related bodies’.

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views. The modifications are intended to fulfil 

the requirements of general application to the public sector, together with the need for greater disclosure and also to satisfy 

If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification 

and where practicable, the resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual notes to these financial statements.

Board, and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer's Instructions. 

Several of the Accounting Standards are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 

The Financial Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation 

of financial statements and take precedence over Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 

The College is a statutory authority established under the Vocational Education and Training (VET) Act 1996. Section 54 (2) of 

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. 

The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Accounting 

Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, modified 

by the revaluation of land, buildings plant and equipment which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preperation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless othe

 presented unless otherwise stated.
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(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $1,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they

form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total)

After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and the cost model for all 

other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and 

accumulated impairment losses. All other plant and equipment are stated at their historic costs less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses.

The fair value of college land and buildings is determined by reference to their " existing use" given the restrict use of land and 

specialised use of the buildings. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining

future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The revaluation of land and buildings is provided independently on a three year basis

by the Department of Land Information (Valuation Services).

When buildings are revalued, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 

amount is restated to the revalued amount.

(b) Depreciation of Non Current Assets

Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. Expected useful lives 

for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings 40 years

Motor Vehicles, Caravans and Trailers 4 to 8 years

Plant, Furniture, General Equipment 4 to 12 years

Computing and Communications 3 to 5 years

(c) Impairment of Assets

impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is  

written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As the College is a not-for-profit entity, unless as  

asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and 

depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset's depreciation is materially understated or where 

the replacement cost is falling. Each relevant class of asset is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated 

depreciation/amortisation eflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset's future economic benefits and to evaluate any 

impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of  

future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment. 

 Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairments at each reporting date. 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner which reflects 

the consumption of their future economic benefits.

Initial Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as cost. For items of property, plant and equipment acquired

for no cost or nominal consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where there is an indication of 
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(d) Inventories

(e) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive 

obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of economic benefits is probable and can be measured reliably. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet reporting date 

Provisions - Employee Benefits

Annual Leave and Long Service Leave

and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Annual and long service leave 

components such as employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability also considers the 

experience of employee departures and periods of service.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the College does not 

have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Superannuation

The Government Employee Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the following superannuation schemes.

The college has no liabilities under the Pension of the GSS Schemes. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme 

and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members who are transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by 

 All staff who are not members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes become non contributory members of the West State 

Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation scheme. The College makes concurrent contributions to GESB on behalf of employees

Inventories held for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most 

appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis.

Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are valued at net 

The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is recognised in the

expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is measured as the present value of amounts expected to be

realisable value.

future cash outflows. 

paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary 

bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated 

Staff may contribute to either the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme now closed to new members, or to the 

Gold State Superannuation Scheme GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new members.

The GESB makes all benefit payments and is recouped by the Treasurer for the employer share in respect of the Pension and GSS 

In compliance with the Commonwealth Government's Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. 

Scheme transfer benefits. 

the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the College to the GESB. 
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Provisions - other

Employment On Costs

(f) Superannuation Expense

The following elements are included in calculating a superannuation expense:

(i) Defined Benefit Plan - change in the unfunded employer's liability in respect of current employees who are members of 

the Gold State Superannuation Scheme.

(ii) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and 

West State Superannuation Scheme. 

Defined benefit plans - in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements in the liabilities in respect of the Pension Scheme 

and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised as expenses. As these liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer, a revenue titled 

in the Income Statement. 

(g) Income

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities 

as follows:

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of 

ownership control transfer to the purchaser. 

Recurrent funding from State Government

Student Fees/Fee for service

Revenue is recorded student fees when paid by the student. 

Fee for service revenue is recorded after completion of the service upon raising an invoice.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

Revenue is recognised when the College obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions usually when the cash 

is received. Contributions are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value 

Employment on-costs, including workers compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised as separate liabilities 

the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to 

Employment on-costs are not included as part of the College's Employee Benefits Expense and the related liability is included 

and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.

in Employment on-costs under Other Expenses.

and 

The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the cost of 

"liabilities Assumed By the Treasurer" equivalent to the expense is recognised under Income from State Government 

services provided by the college in the current year.

The funds received from the Department of Education and Training in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the 

Delivery Performance Agreement have been disclosed as State Funds under 'Revenues from State Government'. This revenue is 

recognised in the period in which the College meets the terms of the Agreement.

The majority of operating revenue of the College represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for service, 

ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and subsidies, as well as revenue received from the Department 

of Education and Training as a result of training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering arrangements. 

can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.
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Gains

Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal 

non-current assets and some revaluations on non-current assets. 

(h) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value

(i) Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any provision for uncollectible amounts (impairment).

The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off.

The provision for uncollectable amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when collectability is no longer probable.

(j) Payables

(k) Accrued Salaries

that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a few days of 

(l) Revaluation of Land and Buildings, and Plant and Equipment

(m) Contributed Equity

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and equivalent) assets comprise cash

on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount 

of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 

within 'Other Borrowings'.

(o) Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

(p) Financial Instruments

The College has one category of financial instrument:

•  Loans and receivables (includes cash and term deposits).

Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value.  Usually the transaction cost or face value is equivalent to fair value and 

subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate are measured at transaction cost/face 

value if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as revenues and as assets 

or expenses, as appropriate, at fair value.

The carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value as is due for settlement within 30 days. 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the College becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of 

a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days. 

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for 

the end of the financial year end. The College considers the carrying amount approximates net fair value.

Under UIG 38 "Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities" transfers in the nature of equity 

The College has a policy of valuing land and buildings at fair value. The annual revaluations of the College's land and buildings 

undertaken by the Valuer General's Office for the Government Property Register are recognised in the financial statements.

contributions must be designated by the Government (owners) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) 

before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions in the financial statements. Capital contributions have been 

designated as contributions by owners and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity in the Balance Sheet.
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1 (ii) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Credit Risk

All receivables for the College are unsecured. The College has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The College has policies

 in place to ensure that transactions are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. 

The College is not involved in foreign currency, hedging or any other form of forecast transaction and has no exposure to

financial risk of this type.

Cash is held in a BankWest account in accordance with the Department of Treasury and Finance policies.

Excess funds are deposited in a Treasury approved investment account where funds are available at call.

1(iii) Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

No significant judgements have been made that would materially alter the current financial results of the college.

1(iv) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have

 a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 

include:

 

A refund is probable to the Department of Education and Training for under delivery of the Delivery and Performance Agreement.

The amount is based on an estimate of Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) at mid January. Final SCH data is not required to be submitted 

until end of February. Also the Invalid Module Enrolment (IME) rate which affects the refund calculation is not known at time of 

reporting.

 

The College has continued to use the 2003 land and building valuations for reporting purposes. Given large increases in property

values throughout the past twelve months uncertainty exists for land and building values for the current year. A formal revaluation

will be undertaken in 2006.

A discount rate of 5.4% pa was applied to long service leave provisions. The discount rate is based on the Commonwealth bond rates 

published by the Reserve Bank of Australia.

1 (v) Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates

No changes have occurred in accounting policies and estimates.
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2005 2004

$ $

2 Employee benefit expense

Wages and Salaries 6,593,549                            6,637,668                    

Superannuation 656,517                               638,848                       

Long service Leave (228,934)                              71,321                         

Annual leave (167,107)                              (111,114                      

6,854,025                            7,236,723                    

3 Finance Costs

Finance lease charges -                                       1,341                           

-                                       1,341                           

4 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation

Buildings 225,543                               217,514                       

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 69,787                                 67,496                         

Plant, furniture and general equipment 116,657                               92,225                         

Computers, communication network and software 135,466                               137,918                       

Total Depreciation 547,453                               515,153                       

Amortisation

Leased plant, equipment and vehicles -                                       14,539                         

Total Amortisation -                                       14,539                         

Total depreciation and amortisation 547,453                               529,692                       

5 Supplies and services

Consumables and minor equipment 572,865                               357,573                       

Communication expenses 208,703                               179,686                       

Utilities expenses 106,918                               97,862                         

Consultancies and contracted services 756,908                               1,011,452                    

Minor works 57,203                                 235,612                       

Repairs and maintenance 124,285                               88,405                         

Operating lease and hire charges 57,329                                 85,863                         

Travel and passenger transport 59,600                                 46,448                         

Advertising and public relations 101,058                               76,778                         

Supplies and services - other 142,221                               116,153                       

2,187,090                            2,295,832                    

6 Grants and subsidies

Apprentices and trainees (travel, accommodation and other off the job assistance) 36,677                                 12,323                         

36,677                                 12,323                         

7 Net profit / (loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Motor Vehicles, Caravan and Marine Craft Proceeds 237,323                               247,033                       

Written down value (234,815)                              (264,622                      

Net Profit on Sale 2,508                                   (17,589                        

Plant, Furniture and General Equipment Proceeds -                                       1                                  

Written down value (516)                                     -                               

Net Profit on Disposal (516)                                     1                                  

Computers, Communication and Software Proceeds 9,548                                   13,952                         

Written down value (1)                                         (13,950                        

Net Profit on Disposal 9,547                                   2                                  

Gain on Disposal of Non-current Assets

Motor vehicles, caravan and marine craft 2,508                                   -                               

Plant, furniture and general equipment -                                       1                                  

Computers, communication and software 9,547                                   2                                  

12,055                                 -                  3                                  

(Loss) on Disposal of Non-current Assets

Plant, furniture and general equipment (516)                                     -                               

Motor Vehicles -                                       (17,589                        

(516)                                     (17,589                        

Net profit 11,539                                 (17,586                        

8 Trading Profit

(a) Bookshop:                                

Sales 142,817                               107,236                       

Cost of sales:

Opening inventory 94,304                                 69,330                         

Purchases 78,828                                 114,329                       

173,132                               183,659                       

Closing inventory                                                  (69,697)                                (94,304                        

Cost of goods sold 103,435                               89,355                         

                                                           

Trading Profit - Bookshop                                      39,382                                 17,881                         

(b) Cafeteria (Non Training Related):

Sales 60,880                                 59,340                         

Cost of sales:

Opening inventory -                                       -                               

Purchases 37,204                                 40,932                         

37,204                                 40,932                         

Closing inventory -                                       

Cost of goods sold 37,204                                 40,932                         

Trading Profit - Cafeteria 23,676                                 18,408                         

63,058                                 36,289                         
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2005 2004

$ $

9 Capital user charge

Capital user charge expense 872,498                               725,521                       

a quarterly basis.

10 Other expenses from ordinary activities

Doubtful debts expense 25,096                                 5,459                           

Student prizes and awards 165                                      4,878                           

Other staffing costs (I) 424,141                               743,444                       

Miscellaneous 41,938                                 490                              

Losses and write-offs 6,114                                   8,658                           

497,454                               762,929                       

11 Fee for service

Fee for service -general 391,618                               238,333                       

Fee for service -Department of Education and Training 71,994                                 53,392                         

Fee for service - government (other than Department of Education and Training) -                                       949                              

463,612                               292,674                       

12 Student fees and charges

Tuition fees 426,951                               432,535                       

Enrolment fees 65,293                                 63,171                         

Resource fees 223,476                               191,200                       

Other college fees 5,907                                   12,505                         

721,627                               699,411                       

13 Ancillary trading

Contracting and consulting -                                       -                               

Other ancillary revenue -                                       1,112                           

-                                       1,112                           

14 Commonwealth grants and contributions

Commonwealth specific purpose grants - CGEA -                                       5,000                           

-                                       5,000                           

15 Other revenues from ordinary activities

Rental and facilities fees 9,179                                   29,166                         

Sponsorship and donations revenue 72,228                                 1,938                           

Miscellaneous revenue 81,261                                 36,490                         

162,668                               67,594                         

16 Income from State Government 

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 7,839,215                            8,044,531                    

Superannuation 604,520                               631,616                       

Other recurrent funds 560,330                               525,352                       

Capital User Charge funding 872,498                               725,521                       

9,876,563                            9,927,020                    

Capital works transferred -                                       13,546                         

-                                       13,546                         

9,876,563                            9,940,566                    

17

Comprised of:

Department of Education and Training

* Corporate systems support 564,657                               569,320                       

* Marketing and publications 27,859                                 17,028                         

* Human resources, industrial relations support -                                       23,008                         

* Other -                                       7,033                           

592,516                               616,389                       

592,516                               616,389                       

18 Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer

Superannuation -                                       5,059                           

-                                       5,059                           

the Gold State Superannuation Scheme. The Notional superannuation expense is disclosed at note 2 "Employee benefit expense".

(I) These employee expenses include superannuation, payroll tax, workers compensation premiums and other employment 

on-costs including those associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability. The related on-costs liability is included 

in employee benefit liabilities at Note 26.

A capital user charge rate of 8% has been set by the Government for 2005 (2004: 8%) and represents the opportunity 

cost of capital invested in the net assets of the College used in the provision of outputs.  The charge is calculated on the 

net assets adjusted to take account of exempt assets.  Payments are made to the Department of Treasury and Finance on 

Resources received free of charge

Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal consideration, the College recognises revenues 

(except where the contribution of assets or services is in the nature of contributions by owners, in which case the College

shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services 

that can be reliably determined and which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall 

be recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable.

The assumption of superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a notional income to match the notional superannuation expense reported in 

respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who have transfer benefit entitlements under 
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2005 2004

$ $

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 3,870                                   4,420                           

Cash at bank 1,155,723                            570,782                       

Short term deposits (a) 1,447,614                            1,178,324                    

2,607,207                            1,753,526                    

(a) 2 month Bank term deposit at 5.34% maturing on 12th February 2006

(b) Specific Capital Equipment and Minor Works (a)

Includes cash restricted for the purpose of College Training Profile activities as specified under section 48(a) of the Act - Capital Projects

20 Inventories

Inventories held for resale:

Bookshop (at cost) 69,697                                 94,304                         

69,697                                 94,304                         

21 Receivables

Current - includes trade debtors, student debtors and over-paid salaries

Receivables - trade 542,908                               228,723                       

Receivables - students 69,898                                 21,524                         

Provision for impairment (doubtful debts) (50,518)                                (25,422                        

Net Receivables 562,288                               224,825                       

Prepayments 91,739                                 89,522                         

GST receivable 8,604                                   44,495                         

662,631                               358,842                       

22 Other current assets

Other - Accrued Interest on Term Deposits 4,197                                   4,482                           

4,197                                   4,482                           

23 Property, plant and equipment

Land

At fair value (a) 46,900                                 46,900                         

46,900                                 46,900                         

Buildings

At fair value (a) 9,021,741                            9,021,741                    

Accumulated depreciation (443,059)                              (217,514                      

Accumulated Impairment Losses -                                       -                               

8,578,682                            8,804,227                    

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 

At cost 529,184                               479,679                       

Accumulated depreciation (101,276)                              (78,112                        

Accumulated Impairment Losses -                                       -                               

427,908                               401,567                       

Plant,  furniture and general equipment

At cost 1,072,611                            782,324                       

Accumulated depreciation (516,173)                              (414,097                      

Accumulated Impairment Losses -                                       -                               

556,436                               368,227                       

Computer equipment, communication network and software

At cost 813,600                               716,649                       

Accumulated depreciation (470,077)                              (392,902                      

Accumulated Impairment Losses -                                       -                               

343,523                               323,747                       

9,953,451                            9,944,668                    

(a)

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below.

2005

Land Buildings

Leasehold 

Improvements

Motor Vehicles, 

Caravans and 

Trailers 

 Plant, Furniture and 

General Equipment 

 Computer Equipment,

Communication

Network and Software Total

 Carrying amount at start of year 46,900                       9,021,741                  -                             479,679             779,652                         708,419                     11,036,390                          

 Additions -                            -                             342,943             316,292                         162,648                     821,883                               

 Disposals -                            -                             -                             (293,438)            (23,333)                          (57,467)                      (374,238)                              

 Depreciation and Amortisation -                            (443,059)                    -                             (101,276)            (516,174)                        (470,077)                    (1,530,586)                           

 Impairment losses -                            -                             -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       

 Revaluation Increments -                            -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       

 Carrying amount at end of year 46,900                       8,578,682                  -                             427,908             556,437                         343,523                     9,953,449                            

Represents cash resources the uses of which are restricted, wholly or partially, by regulations or other externally imposed 

requirements which forms part of Cash at Bank.

The valuation of land was performed on 1 July 2003 in accordance with an independent valuation by the Department of Land Information

(Valuation Services).  Fair value has been determined on the basis of current use value of land and the depreciated replacement cost of 

buildings. The fair value of acquisitions subsequent to valuation date have been based on their cost.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks, and investments in money market instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cashflow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
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24 Impairment of Assets

There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2005.

The College held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.

There were no surplus assets ate the reporting date. 

25 Payables

Current 

Trade payables 3,153                                   6,282                           

3,153                                   6,282                           

26 Provisions

Current

Employee Benefits

Annual leave 124,568                               266,288                       

Long service leave 416,016                               681,498                       

540,584                               947,787                       

Other Provisions 

Employment On-costs (a)

132,997                               156,234                       

132,997                               156,234                       

Non-current Total Current 673,581                               1,104,021                    

Employee Benefits

Long service leave 320,709                               238,133                       

320,709                               238,133                       

Other Provisions 

Employment On-costs (a) 48,106                                 39,254                         

48,106                                 39,254                         

Total Non-current 368,815                               277,387                       

Total 1,042,396                            1,381,408                    

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 

after the reporting date.  Assessment indicate that actual settlement of liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of reporting date 673,581                     

More than 12 months after reporting date 368,815                     

1,042,396                  

27 Other  current liabilities

Current

Student Fees and Charges received in advance 9,178                                   7,731                           

Accrued expenditure 137,503                               305,025                       

Accrued salaries and related costs 26,405                                 18,345                         

Amounts owing to the department 666,000                               -                               

839,086                               331,101                       

28 Equity

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the College.  The Government holds the equity interest in the College on behalf of the community. 

The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation on non-current assets. 

29 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cashflows used in operating activities

Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cashflow statement is reconciled to the related items as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,607,207          

2,607,207          

Net Cost of Services (9,523,869)                           (10,411,651)                 

Non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 547,453                               529,692                       

Doubtful debts expense 25,096                                 5,459                           

Resources received free of charge 592,516                               621,448                       

Net (gain) / loss on disposal on non-current assets (11,539)                                17,586                         

Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money) 6,114                                   8,658                           

Asset revaluation -                                       -                               

Superannuation expense (Notional) 656,517                               631,616                       

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Current receivables (283,926)                              (86,816                        

Inventories 24,607                                 (24,974                        

Prepayments (2,217)                                  28,552                         

Other current assets -                                       (4,482                          

Non-current receivables -                                       

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Payables (3,129)                                  (75,503                        

Income received in advance/grants and advances 1,447                                   1,131                           

Current provisions (482,350)                              137,831                       

Other current Liabilities 559,895                               64,688                         

Non-current Provisions 91,428                                 17,864                         

Net GST receipts/(payments) 128,236                               (7,175                          

Net cash used in operating activities (7,673,721)                           (8,546,076)                   

(a) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including 

superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation premiums.  The liability for such on-costs is included here. The 

associated expense is included under 'other staffing costs' (under Other expenses) at note 10. 
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30 Commitments for expenditure

Within 1 year -                                       6,346                           

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years -                                       -                               

Later than 5 years -                                       -                               

-                                       6,346                           

31 Explanatory Statement

detailed below.  Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $50,000.

2005 2004 Variance Variance

Expenditure $ $ $ %

Employee expenses 6,724,279          7,980,167                      (1,255,888)                 -15.75%

Greater salary and wage costs as associated with award increases and increased superannuation  

expenditure compared with 2004

Borrowing costs expense -                     1,341                             (1,341)                        

Reduced to zero due to the expiry of finance leases (Computer, copiers and Vehicles) part way through 2004.

Supplies and services 2,187,136          2,295,832                      (108,696)                    -4.73%

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the Department of Training, particularly 

in the area of Corporate Systems support. 

Grants and subsidies 36,677               12,323                           24,354                       97.62%

Greater number of grants awarded and apprentice recoups than previous year.  

Costs of disposal of non-current assets 234,814             278,572                         (43,758)                      -15.71%

Fewer motor vehicles disposals in 2005. 

Other expenses from ordinary activities 497,454             19,485                           477,969                     3006.00%

Employee On-costs are included in the 2005 amount under IFRS reporting requirements. 

2005 2004 Variance Variance

Revenues $ $ $ %

Ancillary trading -                     1,112                             

No contracting and consultancy income was generated in 2005.

Trading profit 63,058               36,289                           26,769                       73.76%

Lower turnover in Bookshop, reduced sales activity through workshop activities 

and no sales of publications in 2005.

Interest revenue 79,132               68,216                           10,916                       16.00%

Higher cash balances in 2005 compared with 2004 resulted in greater surplus cash for term deposits, ]

interest revenues. 

Other revenues from ordinary activities 162,670             73,997                           88,673                       119.81%

Significant increase in non DET special purpose sponsorship and donation revenues compared with 2004. 

State funds 9,876,563          10,091,168                    (214,605)                    2.57%

Marginally lower DPA funding than compared with 2004.

Resources received free of charge 592,516             616,389                         (23,873)                      3.87%

Slightly less resources received free of charge from the Department of Education & Training, particularly 

in the area of Information and Systems Support. 

(b) Significant variations between estimates and actual results for the financial year

considered to be those greater than 10% of budget (or $50,000).

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

(a) Significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for the financial year 

and revenues and expenditures for the immediately preceding financial year

Significant variations in revenues and expenditures between actual results and the corresponding items of the preceding year are 

Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and actual results are detailed below.  Significant variations are 
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2005 2005 Variance Variance

Budget Actual

Expenditure $ $ $ %

Borrowing costs expense -                     -                                 -                             0.00%

No Borrowing costs were incurred in 2005

Supplies and services 2,364,706          2,187,136                      (177,570)                    7.60%

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the Department of Training, particularly 

in the area of Information and Systems Support. 

Grants and subsidies 3,563                 36,677                           33,114                       929.30%

Greater number of apprentice recoups than originally estimated.  

Costs of disposal of non-current assets -                     234,814                         234,814                     

Estimate for costs of disposals previously included in other expenses from ordinary activities.  Refer below.

Other expenses from ordinary activities 275,000             497,454                         222,454                     120.05%

Estimate included cost of disposal of non-current assets separately disclosed above in actuals. 

Fewer disposals than expected.

Revenues

Ancillary trading -                     -                                 -                             0.00%

No ancillary trading occurred throughout 2005.

Trading profit 20,000               63,058                           43,058                       215.25%

Lower bookshop and workshop sales income than expected.

Interest revenue 75,000               79,132                           4,132                         5.22%

Higher cash balances in 2005 compared with 2004 resulted in greater surplus cash for term deposits, 

which yielded higher interest revenues. 

Other revenues from ordinary activities 75,000               162,670                         87,670                       116.89%

Higher estimates of sponsorship and donations revenues and GEHA recoups than actually received. 

State funds 9,440,317          9,876,563                      436,246                     4.15%

Increased funding for superannuation and greater special purpose grants for Training Technology, 

Science & Technology funds for Aquaculture TLSAG and Youth Co-ordinator funding. 

Resources received free of charge 631,799             592,516                         (39,283)                      6.22%

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the Department of Training, 

particularly in the area of Information and Systems Support. 

32 Financial Instruments

(a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure

Weighted Average Variable Interest Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Non-Interest Total

Effective Interest Rate Bearing

Rate

2005 % $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash assets 4.60% 1,158,527                  1,447,574                  -                     -                                 -                             2,606,101                            

Receivables -                             -                             -                     -                                 662,631                     616,662                               

Other financial assets -                             -                             -                     -                                 4,197                         4,197                                   

1,158,527                  1,447,574                  -                     -                                 666,828                     3,226,960                            

Financial Liabilities

Payables -                             -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       

Employee benefits -                             -                             -                     -                                 1,042,396                  968,954                               

Other liabilities -                             -                             -                     -                                 839,086                     890,996                               

-                             -                             -                     -                                 1,881,482                   1,859,950                            

Net Financial Assets (Liabilities) 1,158,527                  1,447,574                  -                     -                                 (1,214,654)                 1,367,010                            

Weighted Average Variable Interest Less Than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Non-Interest Total

Effective Interest Rate Bearing

Rate

2004 % $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash assets 575,203                     1,178,324                  -                     -                                 -                             1,753,527                            

Restricted cash assets 4.58% -                             -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       

Receivables -                             -                             -                     -                                 269,320                     269,320                               

Other financial assets -                             -                             -                     -                                 94,005                       94,005                                 

575,203                     1,178,324                  -                     -                                 363,325                     2,116,852                            

Financial Liabilities

Payables -                             -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       

Finance Lease -                             -                             -                     -                                 -                                       

Employee benefits -                             -                             -                     -                                 1,381,408                  1,381,408                            

Other liabilities -                             -                             -                     -                                 331,101                     331,101                               

-                             -                             -                     -                                 1,712,509                   1,712,509                            

Net Financial Assets (Liabilities) 575,203                     1,178,324                  -                     -                                 (1,349,184)                 404,343                               

(b) Credit Risk Exposure

(c) Net Fair Values

The carrying amount of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the Financial Statements are not materially

different from their net fair values.

The following table details the College's exposure to interest rate risk at reporting date.

Fixed Interest Rate

Fixed Interest Rate

All financial liabilities are unsecured.

The carrying amounts recorded on the financial statements represents the College's maximum exposure 

 to credit risk in relation to those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.
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33 Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers

$

$1 - $10,000 3                                          3                                  

$120,001 - $130,000 -                                       -                               

$130,001 - $140,000 -                                       1                                  

$160,000 - $170,000 1                                          -                               

The total remuneration of the members of the Accountable Authority is: 162,398                               140,611                       

No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

$

$20,001 - $30,000 -                                       -                               

$40,001 - $50,000 -                                       1                                  

$50,001 - $60,000 1                                          -                               

$90,001 - $100,000 1                                          1                                  

$100,001 - $110,000 2                                          2                                  

$130,001 - $140,000 -                                       -                               

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 323,948                               284,654                       

No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

34 Reconciliations explaining the transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS)

 Previous GAAP  Total  AIFRS  

01 January 2004 Adj 01 January 2004

 Restoration costs 

 AASB 116  AASB 138  AASB 119 

Note

ASSETS  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

Current Assets

(1) Cash and cash equivalents 1,082,422                  -                             1,082,422                    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 65,851                       -                             65,851                         

Inventories 69,330                       -                             69,330                         

Receivables 318,605                     -                             318,605                       

(2) Other current assets 118,075                     -                             118,075                       

(3) Non-current assets classified as held for sale -                             -                             -                               

Total Current Assets 1,654,283                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             1,654,283                    

Non-Current Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                             -                               

Inventories -                             -                               

Receivables -                             -                               

Property, plant, equipment and Vehicles 8,901,061                  -                             8,901,061                    

Intangible assets -                             -                               

(4) Other non-current assets -                             -                               

Total Non-Current Assets 8,901,061                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             8,901,061                    

Total Assets 10,555,344                -                             -                     -                                 -                             10,555,344                  

Current Liabilities

Payables 81,785                       -                             81,785                         

(5) Borrowings 23,997                       -                             23,997                         

Provisions 966,190                     -                             966,190                       

(6) Other current liabilities 233,178                     -                             233,178                       

(3) -                             -                               

Total Current Liabilities 1,305,150                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             1,305,150                    

Non-Current Liabilities

Payables -                             -                               

(5) Borrowings -                             -                               

Provisions 259,523                     -                             259,523                       

(7) Other non-current liabilities -                             -                               

Total Non-Current Liabilities 259,523                     -                             -                     -                                 -                             259,523                       

Total Liablities 1,564,673                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             1,564,674                    

Net Assets 8,990,671                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             8,990,670                    

Equity

Contributed equity -                             -                               

Reserves 235,233                     -                             235,233                       

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 8,755,437                  -                             8,755,437                    

(3) -                             -                               

Total Equity 8,990,670                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             8,990,670                    

(1) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Cash Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’)

(2) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other Current assets’)

(3) New AIFRS category

(4) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current assets’)

(5) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Interest-bearing liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Borrowings’)

(6) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other current liabilities’)

(7) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current liabilities’)

Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority

The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for 

Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to non current assets 

classified as held for sale

the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of members 

of the Accountable Authority.

The number of Senior Officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees,

Adjustments

Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held 

for sale

 salaries, superannuation and other benefits receivable for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of Senior Officers 

other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE DATE OF TRANSITION TO AIFRS: 1 JANUARY 2004 (AASB 1.39(a)(i))
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 Previous GAAP  Total  AIFRS  

31 December 2004 Adj 31 December 2004

 Presentation of 

Financial Statements 

 AASB 101  AASB 138  AASB 119 

Note

ASSETS  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

Current Assets

(1) Cash and cash equivalents 1,753,526                  -                             1,753,526                    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                             -                             -                               

Inventories 94,304                       -                             94,304                         

Receivables 269,320                     89,522                       89,522                       358,842                       

(2) Other current assets 94,004                       (89,522)                      (89,522)                      4,482                           

(3) Non-current assets classified as held for sale -                             -                             -                               

Total Current Assets 2,211,154                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             2,211,154                    

Non-Current Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                             

Inventories -                             -                             -                               

Receivables -                             -                             -                               

Property, plant and equipment 9,944,668                  -                             -                               

Infrastructure -                             -                             9,944,668                    

Intangible assets -                             -                             -                               

Other non-current assets -                             -                             -                               

Total Non-Current Assets 9,944,668                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             9,944,668                    

TOTAL ASSETS 12,155,822                -                             -                     -                                 -                             12,155,822                  

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 6,282                         -                             6,282                           

(4) Borrowings -                             -                             -                               

Provisions 1,104,021                  -                                 -                             1,104,021                    

(5) Other current liabilities 331,101                     -                             331,101                       

(3) assets classified as held for sale -                             -                             -                               

Total Current Liabilities 1,441,404                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             1,441,404                    

Non-Current Liabilities

Payables -                             -                             -                               

Borrowings -                             -                             -                               

Provisions 277,387                     -                                 -                             277,387                       

(6) Other non-current liabilities -                             -                               

Total Non-Current Liabilities 277,387                     -                             -                     -                                 -                             277,387                       

Total Liabilities 1,718,791                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             1,718,791                    

Net Assets 10,437,031                -                             -                     -                                 -                             10,437,031                  

Equity

Contributed equity 176,635                     -                             176,635                       

Reserves 1,368,142                  -                             1,368,142                    

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 8,892,254                  -                                 -                             8,892,254                    

(3) -                             -                               

Total Equity 10,437,031                -                             -                     -                                 -                             10,437,031                  

The transition to AIFRS includes adjustments for the transition AIFRS as at 1 January 2004 plus adjustments for the period 1January 2004 to 31 December 2004.

(1) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Cash Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’)

(2) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other current assets’)

(3) New AIFRS category

(4) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Interest-bearing liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Borrowings’)

(5) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other current liabilities’)

(6) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current liabilities’)

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE END OF THE LAST REPORTING PERIOD UNDER PREVIOUS AGAAP: 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.39(a)(ii))

g y q y g

classified as held for sale

Adjustments



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2005

78

C.Y. O'Connor College of TAFE

NOTES TO THE IFRS FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 05GLACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2005 2004

$ $

 Previous GAAP  Total  AIFRS  

31 December 2004 Adjustments 31 December 2004

 Restoration costs 

AASB 116 AASB 138 AASB 119 AASB 137 AASB 101

Note

COST OF SERVICES $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Expenses 

(1) Employee benefits expense 7,980,167                  (743,444)                        (743,444)         7,236,723                    

Supplies and services 2,295,832                  2,295,832                    

Depreciation and amortisation expense 529,692                     -                  529,692                       

(2) Finance costs 1,341                         -                  1,341                           

Grants and subsidies 12,323                       -                  12,323                         

Capital user charge 725,521                     -                  725,521                       

(3) Loss on disposal of non current assets 17,586                       -                  17,586                         

(4) Other expenses 19,485                       743,444                         743,444          762,929                       

Total cost of services 11,581,947                -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       -                  11,581,947                  

Income

Revenue 

Fee for service 292,674                     -                  292,674                       

Student fees and charges 699,411                     -                  699,411                       

Ancillary trading 1,112                         -                  1,112                           

Trading profit 36,289                       -                  36,289                         

Commonwealth grants and contributions 5,000                         -                  5,000                           

Interest revenue 68,216                       -                  68,216                         

(5) Other revenue 67,594                       -                  67,594                         

1,170,296                  -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       -                  1,170,296                    

NET COST OF SERVICES (10,411,651)               -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       -                  (10,411,651)                 

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State Funds 9,927,020                  -                  9,927,020                    

Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 5,059                         -                  5,059                           

Assets assumed/(transferred) -                             -                  -                               

Resources received free of charge 616,389                     -                  616,389                       

Total income from State Government 10,548,468                -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       -                  10,548,468                  

(6) Loss from extraordinary item. -                             -                                       -                  -                               

(7) Surplus/(deficit) for the period 136,817                     -                             -                     -                                 -                             -                                       -                  136,817                       

See Statement of Changes in Equity

(1) Employment on-costs are not included under AGAAP, however under AGAAP employee benefits and on-costs are disclosed together on the face of the income statement as 

Employee costs.

(2) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Borrowing costs expense’ (AIFRS ‘Finance costs’)

(3) Disposals are treated on the net basis under AIFRS

(4) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other expenses from ordinary activities’ (AIFRS ‘Other expenses’)

(5) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other revenues from ordinary activities’ (AIFRS ‘Other revenue’)

(6) Extraordinary items are not separately disclosed under AIFRS

(7) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Change in net assets’ (AIFRS ‘Surplus/(deficit)’)

 

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME STATEMENT (PROFIT OR LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.39(b))

Total income other than income from State Government

Adjustments
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2005 2004

$ $

 Previous GAAP  Total  AIFRS  

31 December 2004 Adjustments 31 December 2004

AASB  119

Note

$ $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Recurrent state funding - Department of Education and Training 9,611,526                  -                                 9,611,526                  

Capital state funding - Department of Education and Training -                             -                                 -                             

Net Cash Inflows/(Outflows) in Respect of Restructuring Activities -                             -                                 -                             

Net Cash Inflows/(Outflows) in Respect of Extraordinary Activities -                             -                                 -                             

Net cash provided by State Government 9,611,526                  -                     -                                 9,611,526                  

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

(1) Employee benefits (7,262,075)                 (547,956)            (547,956)                        (7,810,031)                 

Supplies and services (1,526,734)                 -                     -                                 (1,526,734)                 

(2) Finance costs (1,341)                        -                                 (1,341)                        

Grants and Subsidies (12,323)                      -                                 (12,323)                      

Capital User Charge (892,900)                    -                                 (892,900)                    

GST payments on purchases (230,747)                    -                                 (230,747)                    

GST payments to taxation authority (34,568)                      -                                 (34,568)                      

Other payments (5,225)                        547,956             547,956                         542,731                     

Receipts

Fee for service 292,674                     -                                 292,674                     

Student fees and charges 672,463                     -                                 672,463                     

Ancillary trading 1,112                         -                                 1,112                         

Commonwealth grants and contributions 5,000                         -                                 5,000                         

Interest received 63,734                       -                                 63,734                       

GST receipts on sales 121,345                     -                                 121,345                     

GST receipts from taxation authority 136,652                     -                                 136,652                     

Other receipts 126,857                     -                                 126,857                     

Net cash provided (used in) operating activities (8,546,076)                 -                     -                                 (8,546,076)                 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 247,036                     -                                 247,036                     

Purchase of non-current physical assets (697,187)                    -                                 (697,187)                    

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (450,151)                    -                     -                                 (450,151)                    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings -                             -                                 -                             

Repayment of borrowings -                             -                                 -                             

Other proceeds -                             -                                 -                             

Other repayments -                             -                                 -                             

Payment of Finance Lease Liabilities (10,046)                      -                                 (10,046)                      

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (10,046)                      -                     -                                 (10,046)                      

(1) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Employee costs’ (IFRS ‘Employee benefits’). Reclassification 

to on-cost expenditure reclassified to 'Other expenses' as per AASB 119. 

(2) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Borrowing costs expense’ (IFRS ‘Finance costs’)

35 Segment Information

Training Delivery.

The college operates in one geographical segment being within the State of Western Australia.

36 Related Bodies

The College has no related bodies.

37 Affiliated Bodies

The College has no affiliated bodies.

38 Remuneration of Auditor

Remuneration of the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows: 59,000                                 55,000                         

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators.

The college has only one segment (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (2) (viii) and that is Vocational Education and 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.40)



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2005

80



Aged Care Graduates

Award Presentation at Graduation
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Ph:  9041 3999
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